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NOMURA

NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Directors of Nomura Europe Holdings plc (the "Company”) present their Strategic Report,
Directors' Report and the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014,

REVIEW OF THE GROUP'S BUSINESS AND DESCRIPTION OF PRINCIPAL RISKS
Review of the Business

The Company is the London based European holding company of the Nomura Group (Nomura
Holdings, Inc. ("NHI"} and its consolidated subsidiaries), the uitimate parent company being NHI.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are broking and dealing in
securities and derivatives and banking activities. They include:

» trading and sales in fixed income and equity products, including related derivatives and

foreign exchange;

investment banking services;

asset and principal finance business;

corporate finance and private equity,

custody and investment management services;

issuance of guaranteed credit and equity linked notes and certificates;

provision of sub-participations and structured loans (including bridge and warehouse

financing);

purchase of structured credit assets and structured loans;

e provision of traditional banking products such as loans and crecit facilties in major
currencies, repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions, letters of credit and guarantees;
and

s taking deposits {ncluding foreign exchange and other reference linked deposits).

The Group remains a key member of the Nomura Group. In addition to European-based business
activity many Wholesale business lines across Asia and the Americas continue to leverage the
Group's well-developed infrastructure and wide client reach.

The Group's key financial and other performance indicators during the year were as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013

$'000 $'000

Trading profit 1,571,725 1,568,782
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (619,052) (960,688)
Loss on ordinary activities after taxation (547,154) (974,269)
Shareholders’ funds - Equity 3,621,344 3,589,160

Average number of employees 2,999 2,972
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NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Group reported a loss on ordinary activities before tax and minority interest for the vear of
$519,062,000 (2013: loss of $960,688,000). Despite continued market challenges the Group
reported a reduced loss as funding costs, including subordinated debt costs, decreased versus the
pricr year, driven by the continued transfer of a number of the Group’s wholesale business
portfolios to other Nomura Group companies. In addition, whilst the Group scaled back certain
businesses, causing a reduction of both Trading Profit and Net Interest Payable, the former was
positively impacted by a smaller loss atlributable to the impact of tightening Nomura Group own
credit spreads, coupled with a gain from the tightening of counterparty credit spreads on positions
held for trading purposes.

As a result of the cyclical pressures facing the industry and to support the stated goals of NHI,
who in August 2012 targeted to reduce costs by a total of $1bn through “narowing and
deepening” of businesses, especially in overseas locations, the Group continued to implement a
numbier of cost reduction initiatives.

The Group wil continue to focus on delivering high value-added products and solutions to its
clients for the year ending 31 March 2015 whilst closely monitoring risk.

Description of Principal Risks

The Group’s activities involve the assumption and transfer of certain risks, including market risk,
credit risk, operational risk, liquidity risk and funding, model risk and business risk. Further
information on these risks and the Group’s risk management objectives and pelicies are described
in note 24 to the financial statements.

These risks are managed through committees and sub-committees of the NEHS Boarc of Directors
the “Board"). These include a Prudential Risk Committee ("PRC") and a Financial Conduct
Committee ("*FCC"), both having oversight of and providing advice to the Board on the Group’s risk
profile, risk appetite, tolerance, future risk strategy and maintenance of an appropriate risk control
framewark,

The Company’'s Audit Committee confirms that the Internal Audit function is, and will be, sufficiently
resourced to assist the Board and Executive Management in protecting the assets, reputation and
sustainability of the crganisation.

The Directors have approved an enterprise risk management tramework for NEHS, which describes
the Group’s approach to risk strategy, appetite, governance, reporting and controls to ensure that
risks taken by the Group are appropriately measured, monitored, reported, controlled and limited to
the confines of the Group’s risk appetite, which defines the type and guantum of risk that the
Group is wiling to accept in pursuit of its business cbjectives.

The Directors are ultimately responsible for reviewing the adequacy of the NEHS enterprise risk
management framework., The Directors consider that the framework in place is adeqguate with regard
to the Group's profile and strategy.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Future of UK GAAP

The Accounting Standards Board ("ASB") has been working on a project entitled the Future of UK
GAAP. As a result, a number of new Financial Reporting Standards ("FRS") were issued, including
FRS 100 “Application of Financial Reporting Requirements”, FR3 101 "Reduced Disclosure
Framework” and FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland”. These standards are effective for accounting periods beginning 1 April 2015, The Company
is currently assessing the impact of these new standards.

Legal Entity Strategy

In line with the Nomura Group’s legal entity strategy, during July 2013, a number of transactions
were migrated from Nomura Capital Markets Limited ("NCM") to the Group. This transfer of trades
occurred following Nomura International plc’s (*NIP”) successful attainment of a model waiver
permission from the Prudential Regulation Authority ("PRA”) in relation to market risk.

As part of this legal entity strategy, the Group also fransferred the market risk of a number of its
trading portfolios te Nomura Financial Products & Services, Inc. (*NFPS”), domiciled in Japan. The
Group will continue to transfer market risk to NFPS as its infrastructure develops and required
regulatory approvals are obtained. Furthermore, trading portfolics from cross border businesses have
been, and wherever possible will continue to be, transferred to entities in their respective regions.

During the year the Group made the decision to cispose of one of its subsidiaries. Following this
decision, the value of the business was reassessed and the investment in the subsiciary was
reviewed for impairment with the result ihat the Group reported an exceptional loss of $28,640,000.
The decision was made as part of the Nomura Group's ongoing reviews of its legal entity strategy.

The Company considered the need to impair its investment in NIP and has recorded an impairment
charge of $417,376,000 to reduce the carrying value of its investment to the level of NIF's closing
net asset value as at 31 March 2014,

Further details about the Company's investments can be found in note 11 to the financial
staterments.

Basel 3

There are a number of regulatory developments that impact capital requirements for UK regulated
entities. Most significantly is Basel 3 which came into force on 1 January 2014. Basel 3 was
adopted into EU law through the fourth Capital Requirements Directive ("CRD V') and Capital
Requirements Ragulation.

Given current market conditions and the changes to the regulatory environment, the Group will
continue to review the capital planning process to ensure that it always maintains adequate capital
to meet its minimum regulatory capital requirements. The Company's Twer 1 capital ratio is
significantly in excess of minimum CRD IV reguirements.
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Capital Injections

In order to strengthen the Group’s capital base, the Company issued $470,000,000 of ordinary
shares to NHI in December 2013,

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH THE GROUP’S RELATED PARTIES

Transactions and balances with the Group's related parties are set cut in note 32 to the financial
statements. The Group has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 8 from disclosing related
party transactions with affiliated companies included in the group financial statements.

EMPLOYEE MATTERS

The Group operates an equal opportunities policy. We have taken steps to ensure all employees
are aware of their obligations in ensuring that the Nomura Group’s environment retains an
atmosphere which is conducive to good working and high performance.

Full intermal communication and access to training and development opportunities support  this
philosophy.

The Group is committed tc taking positive action to promote equality of opportunity, which includes
provision for disabled people and those who have become disabled while employed by the Nomura
Group. Our recruitment, training and promotion procedures are all based on the requirements of a
particular position.

The Nomura Group has an established policy of communicating with ali its employees regularly, in
order to provide information relevant to them about their employment and Nomura. This includes
regular Nomura news bulleting circulated to all UK employees as well as communication and
updates on the employee fraining programmes that are available. All UK employees are encouraged
to participate in the various employee committees and networks offered by the Nomura Group. The
Nomura Group is not listed in the UK and therefore does not operate an employee share scheme.
However employee involvement in the performance of the Nomura Group is encouraged, in a
number of ways, including through the provision of a discretionary tonus scheme, which is based
on the employee's individual performance as well as their division as a whole and the overall
Company and Nomura Group performance. The Nomura Group's financial performance is regularly
communicated to employees through guarterly town halls in which the Group’s financial performance
is discussed.
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ENVIRONMENT

The Nomura Group is committed to acting in an ervironmentally responsitle manner.
The Nomura Group:

e encourages investment and constructive engagement in environmentally friendly goods and
services;

e assesses environmental risks and continually strives to minimise pollution and improve the
environment;

e complies with relevant environmental laws and regulations and engages with extamal
stakehclders on environmantal issues;

e is committed to reducing waste and consenving energy and natural resourcas to minimise
the impact of our footprint on the environment; and

« communicatas this policy to all its employess to raise awareness of environmental issues
and encourages envircnmentally friendly initiatives,

The Nomura Group makes this policy availatle for public viewing at:

http:/Awww. nomuraholdings.comd/osr/citizenship/environment/manansment

BY ORDER AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD AT A MEETING HELD ON 23 SEPTEMBER 2014

Q. Fame

Andrew Eames
Company Secretary

Company Registaered Number: 3536674



NOMURA

NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The resuits for the year are set out on page 12. The loss for the year before tax and minority
interests amounted to $518,052,000 (2013: loss of $960,688,000).

No interim dividends were paid (2013: $nil) and the Directors do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend (2013 $nil).

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Movements in tangible fixed assets are shown in note 10 to the financial statements.

On 3 September 2013, the Group sold the leasehold of a property on Gloucester Gate, London to
a subsidiary undertaking of NHI for £22,000,000 ($34,265,000) and recognised an exceptional gain
on disposal of $26,334,000. This sale was part of the Group's strategy to hold ali UK properties
used by the Group in one single legal entity.

EVENTS SINCE THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 19 June 2014 the Company repaid subordinated debt in the amounts of $1,625,000,000 and
$125,000,000 to NHI and Nomura Europe Finance N.V. (“NEF"} respectively.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations of $610,052 (2013: $5657,202) have been made during the year. No political
donations were made during the year {2013: $nil).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's risk management objectives and policies are described in note 24 on page 71 to the
financial statements. Further analysis on financial instruments is disclosed in note 12 and 25 on
page 52 and 94 respectively. The accounting policies with respect to fair value of financial
instruments are described within note 1 on page 18.

MATTERS DEALT WITH IN THE STRATEGIC REPORT

An indication of the likely future developments of the Group has been discussed in the Group
Strategic Report.
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DIRECTORS

The current Directors and those serving during all or part of the year were;

Kieran Poynter Chairman
Non-Executive Director
Jeremy Bennett Chief Executive Officer {appointed 2 August 2013)

Executive Director (appointed 2 August 2013)
Non-Executive Director (resigned 2 August 2013

Yasuo Kashiwagi Executive Director
Co-Chief Executive Officer (appointed 2 August 2013)
Interim Chief Executive Officer (resigned 2 August 2013)

Lewis O'Donald Executive Director

David Benson Executive Director

Paul Spanswick Executive Director

David Findlay Executive Director (appeointed 1 July 2013)

Devesh Mehta Executive Director

Hiroyuki Suzuki Non-Executive Director (appointed 20 November 2013}

Patrik Edsparr Non-Exacutive Director (appointed 22 January 2014)
Non-Executive Director {resigned 20 May 2014)

Sir Andrew Cahn Non-Executive Director

John Phizackerley Executive Director (resigned 9 April 2013;

Shigesuke Kashiwagi Executive Director (resigned 9 April 2013)

Masanori [tatani Non-Executive Director (resigned 18 July 2013)

Dame Clara Furse Non-Executive Director (resigned 1 May 2013)

RECRUITMENT POLICY

The NEHS Nominations Commitlee is responsible for having regard to a broad sst of technical
capabilities and competencies when recruiting members of the Board of NIP and NEHS. The
Nominations Committee is also responsible for putting in place a policy promoting diversity on the
Board.

DIVERSITY POLICY

Nomura is an equal opportunities company committed to providing egual opportunities  throughout
its beard appointments including in the recruitment, training and development of board msmbers.
The objective is to attract the best possible candidates and to retain the best people.

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

As at the date of this report and during the relevant financial year, indemnities are and were in
force under which the Company has agreed to indemnify certain Directors of the Company,
Directors of certain associated Companies to the extent permitied by law and in accordance with
the Company's articles of association, in respect of certain losses and liabilities arising out of, in
connection with, the execution of their powers, duties and responsibilities, as Directors of the
Company. In addition, NHI has affected a global Directors and Officers liability insurance programme
for the benefit of the Group.
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GOING CONCERN

The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out in this Report. Its objectives, policies and processes for risk
management, and its exposures to credit and liquidity risk, are described in note 24 to the financial
statements. Its capital management procedures and available capital resources are described in
note 26.

The Company received an injection of ordinary share capital in December 2013 to support its
capital position. While market and regulatory pressures remain challenging, the improvecd capital
base will allow continued focus on client flow business and supplying liguidity to the market, whilst
Closely monitoring risk.

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and Group have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly the financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The Directors who were members of the Board at the time of approving the Directors’ Report are
listed on the page 7. Having made enguiries of fellow Directors and of the Group's auditors, each
of these Directors confirms that:

» to the best of each Director's knowledge and belief, there is no information relevant to the
preparation of their Report of which the Group's auditors are unaware; and

o osach Director has taken all the steps a Director might reasonably be expected to have
taken to be aware of relevant audit information and to establish that the Group’s auditors
are aware of that information.

AUDITORS
The Auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, have expressed their wilingness to continue in office and a

regolution re-appointing them as Auditors and authorising the Directors to  determine  their
remuneration will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The ODirectors are responsible for preparing the Directors Report, the Strategic Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulaticns.

Company law reguires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
that law the Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable lawy}.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company
and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
Directors are required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Company and the Group will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that are sufiicient to show and
explain the Group's and Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and otner irregularities,

The Directors are also responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and Strategic Report in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable regulaticns.

BY ORDER AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD AT A MEETING HELD ON 23 SEPTEMBER, 2014

A, Laen

Andrew Eames
Comparny Secretary

Company Registered Number: 3536674
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NOMURA EUROPE
HOLDINGS PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Nomura Europe Holdings plc for the year ended 31
March 2014 which comprise the Group Profit and Loss Acccunt, the Group and Parent Company
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, the Group and Parent Company Reconciliation of
Movement in Shareholders’ Funds, the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets and the refated
notes 1 to 35. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdem Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’'s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’'s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed,

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 9, the Directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view. Qur responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB’s) Ethical Standards for
Auditors.

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of. whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and the Parent Company’s circumstances and
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify
materiat inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31
March 2014 and of the Group’s loss for the year then ended,

s have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 20086.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NOMURA EUROPE
HOLDINGS PLC (CONTINUED)

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report and Strategic Report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinien:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

« the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; ar

» certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

(=t A Y;D CLp

David Canning-Jones (Senior statutory auditor)

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

September 2014
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NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC

GROUP PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Notes $’000 $'000 $'000 $°000
1(n),3 TRADING PROFIT 1,671,725 1,568,782
4 Other operating income 431 2,338
1,572,156 1,671,120
1,5 Interest receivable and similar
income 950,113 1,229,702
10,5 Interest payable and similar
charges (1,116,832 (1,957,383}
Net interest payable (166,719) (727,681)
General and administrative
expenses (1,748,941) (1,545,966)
OPERATING LOSS (343,504) (702,527)
Exceptional gain on disposal 26,334 -
Exceptional losses (28,640) (59,740)
Interest payable on
subordinated borrowings (170,127) (192,328)
9 Amortisation of goodwill (3,115) {6,093)
3,6 LOSS ON ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES BEFORE
TAXATION (519,052) (960,688)
g Tax charge on loss on ordinary
activities (28,102) (13,581)
LOSS ON ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES AFTER TAXATION (547,154} {974,269)
Minority intarasts - 11
23 LOSS FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO MEMBERS
OF THE PARENT GROUP (547,154) (974,258)

All profits and losses in the current and prior year are derived from continuing activities.
Exceptional items represent gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets.

The notes on pages 18 to 110 form part of these financial statemeants.

12
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NOMURA

GROUP STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Notes

Loss for the financial year attributabie to members of
the parent Group
Current tax charge recognised in the statement of total
recognised gains and losses
1{), 23 Gain on available-for-sale investments
1), 23 Realised profit on available-for-sale investments
reclassified to the profit and loss account on disposal
23 Exchange gain on re-translation of foreign sutsidiaries

Total recognised losses relating to the year

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
$°000 $'000
{547,154) {974,258)
(1,201} -

5,855 215

(431) (2,280)

531 9,606

(542,600) (966,717)

COMPANY STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013

Notes $'000 $'000

Loss for the financial year (455,482 (1,373.279)

1(e) Faoreign currency losses/gains (60,721) 38,419

Loss on disposal of investment due to group

restructuring {1,588)

Total recognised losses relating to the year {517,791) {1,334,860)

The notes on pages 18 to 110 form part of these financial statements.

13
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NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN GROUP SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013

Notes $°000 $'000
Total recognised losses relating to the year 542,600) (966,717)

23 Movement on share-based payment reserve 104,784 113,652
22 New share capital subscribed 470,000 1,122,821
Net addition to shareholders’ funds 32,184 269,756

Opening shareholders’ funds 3,688,160 3,319,404

Closing shareholders’ funds 3,621,344 3,588,160

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN THE COMPANY SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013

Notes $’000 $'000
2 Total recognised losses relating to the year (517,791) (1,334,860)
22 New share capital subscribed 470,000 1,122,821
Net addition to shareholders’ funds (47,791) (212,039)

Opening shareholders’ funds 3,252,734 3,464,773

Closing shareholders’ funds 3,204,943 3,252,734

The notes on pages 18 te 110 form part of these financial statements.

14



NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC

GROUP BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2014

Notes

12,21
12,20
12,18

FIXED ASSETS

Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Available-for-sale investmenis

CURRENT ASSETS

Financial assets held for trading

Financial assets designated fair value through
profit and loss

Collateral paid for securities purchased under

agreements to resell

Collateral paid for securities borrowed
Trade debtors

Other debtors

Investments - time deposits

Cash at bank and in hand

CREDITORS (AMOUNTS FALLING DUE
WITHIN ONE YEAR)

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial liabilities designated fair value through
profit and ioss

Collateral received for securities sold under
agreements o repurchase

Collateral received for securities loanad
Trade creditors

Loans and overdrafts

Other creditors

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

CREDITORS (AMOUNTS FALLING DUE
AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR)
Subordinated debt

Other creditors

Loans

NET ASSETS

15

NOMURA

27,420

251,928

8.216
287,564

282,201,987
17,804,491

126,427,301
18,623,560
3,124,992
11,882,745
2,489,201
4,136,510

466,590,787

{(257,672,229)

(14,264,510)
(128,349,248)
(14,350,606}
{4,003,087)
(6,116,444)
{31,314,332)
(455,970,456)

10,620,331

10,907,895

(6,375,000)

(88,166)

(815,874)

3,628,855

220,511,141
23,809,450

138,112,583
16,251,621
2,621,198
13,388,027
2,454,176
6,638,737

423,686,933

(210,568,272)
{(16,970,259)

128,874,807)
(9,903,292)
(4,298,014)
(8,107,555)

(34,277,702)

(412,999,901)

368,930

10,687,032

11,086,962

(5,275,000)
(36,214)

(2,146,988)

3,597,780



NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC

GROUP BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

NOMURA

Notes 2014 2013
$'000 $'000

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
22 Called up share capital 7,836,322 7,166,322
23 Share premium 7,188 7,188
23 Other Reserve (266,094) (266,094
23 Redenomination reserve 37,373 37,373
23 Available-for-sale reserve 12,033 8,010
11,23  Share-based payment reserve 688,252 583,468
23 Translation reserve 371,311 370,780
23 Profit and loss account (4,865,041) {4,317 ,887)
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS - EQUITY 3,621,344 3,589,160
Minority interests 7,511 8,600
CAPITAL EMPLOYED 3,628,855 3,597,760

BY ORDER AND BEHALF OF THE BOARD AT A MEETING HELD ON 23 SEPTEMBER 2014

AND SIGNED ON ITS BEHALF BY:

Devesh
Director
September 2014

The notes on pages 18 to 110 form part of these financial statements.

16



NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2014

Notes

11

15

21
18
17
19

21

22
23
23
23
23

NOMAURA

2014 2014 2013
$'000 $000 $'000
FIXED ASSETS
Investments 5,317,041
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 5,508,984 5,521,485
CREDITORS (AMOUNTS FALLING DUE
WITHIN ONE YEAR)
Subordinated debt - (1,100,000)
Loans and overdrafts (1,225,141) {1,132,554)
Trade creditors (1,285) (1,259
Other creditors {20,656) {17.911)
(1,247,082) (2,251,724)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 4,262,902
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ©,579,943
LIABILITIES
CREDITORS (AMOUNTS FALLING DUE
AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR)
Subordinated debt (6,375,000)
NET ASSETS 3,204,843
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 7,636,322
Share premium 7,188
Redencmination reserve 37,373
Other reserves (172,171)
Profit and loss account {4,303,769)
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS - EQUITY 3,204,843

2013
$'000

5,257,993

3,269,741

8,527,734

(5,275,000)

3,252,734

7,166,322
7,188
37,373
{111,450)

3,846,689

3,252,734

APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON 23 SEPTEMBER 2014 AND SIGNED ON

IT

S BEHALF BY:

Devesh Menta
Director

September 2014

The notes on pages 18 to 110 form part of these financial statements,
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NOMNURA

NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014
1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{a} Basis of Accounting

The Group financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the inclusion of trading securities, derivatives and
other financial instruments at fair value in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
accounting standards (UK GAAP), as defined in note f below.

Where appropriate, prior year figures have been restated to conform with current ysar
presentation.

{b) Basis of Consclidation

The Group financial statements comprise the financial statements of the parent and its
subsidiary and quasi-subsidiary undertakings (as set out in note 11) as at and for the year
ended 31 March each year. Excluding the financial statements of Nomura Bangue France,
S.A., whose year end is 31 December, the financial statements of the subsidiaries and quasi-
subsidiaries have the same accounting reference date as the Company. Where appropriate,
the relevant adjustments have been made to the individual financial statements in order to
harmenise the Group’s accounting policies.

All subsidiaries are accounted for using the merger method of accounting, except for Nomura
Bank Intzmational plc, Nomura Nederland NV, Nomura Bank (Luxembourg) S.A., Nomura
Code Securities Limited (in liquidation), Nomura Investment Banking B.S.C. and Starbright
Finance Co., Ltd. (formerly GE Capital Finance (China) Co., Ltd.), which are ceonsolidated
using the acquisition method of accounting.

Subsidiaries are fully consclidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
Control is achieved where the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the group profit and loss account
from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where the Group holds 20% or more of the voting rights of an entity, the entity will not be
equity accounted for if either:
- significant influence is not exercised over the entity as it is passively held within an
invastment portfolio; or
- the holding in the entity is held as a current asset investment and not on a long
term basis, and is therefore not a participating interest,

The Group alsc consolidates guasi-subsidiaries using the acquisition method of accounting. A
quasi-subsidiary is a group, trust, partnership or other vehicle that, though not fulfiling the
definition of a subsidiary, is directly or indirectly controlled by the Group and gives rise to
benefits for the Group that are in substance no different from those that would arise were
the vehicle a subsidiary.

Minority interests represant the portion of profit or loss and net assets not attributable,
directly or indirectly, by the Group and are presented separately in the profit and loss
account and within reserves in the Group balance sheet, separately from the parent
shareholders’ funds.
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NOAURA

NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{c) Goodwill

Goodwill is the difference bDetween the cost of an acquired entity or business and the
aggregate of the fair value of that entity's identifiable assets and liabilifies.

Positive goodwill arising on acquisition is capfalised, classified as an asset on the balance
sheet and amortised on a straight line basis over its useful economic life. It is reviewed for
impairment at the end of the first full financial year following the acquisition and in other
periods if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. If an entity is subsequently sold or closed, any gocdwill arising on acgquisition
that has not been amortised through the profit and foss account is taken into account in
determining the profit or loss on sale or closure.

During the previous financial year, goodwill from the Starbright Finance Co., Ltd. (formerly GE
Capital Finance {China) Co., Ltd.) acguisiton arose which also has a useful life of twenty
years.,

{d) Trade Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of securities are accounted for on a settlement date basis.
Loans and receivables are accounted for on a settlement date basis.

(e)  Foreign Currencies

Group

The assets and liabilities of the Company's subsidiaries and quasi-subsidiaries are translated
into US Doliars at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Income and
expenses are translated using average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in a separate component of equity. The exchange difference arising
on the translation of opening net assets is taken directly to reserves.

Company

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying
the spot exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences arising from the application of closing rates of
exchange, together with exchange gains/losses from trading activities, are taken to the profit
and loss account. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions.

All other translation differences are taken to the profit and loss account with the exception of
differences on foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are used to finance or
provide a hedge against equity investments in foreign enterprises, which are taken directly to
reserves together with the exchange differences on the net investrment in these enterprises.
On the disposal of a subsidiary, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in eguity relating
to that particular operation is recognised in the profit and loss account.
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NOMURA

NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

1.

(f)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Group holds a significant portion of financial instruments at fair value, as described
below., A description of the Group's policies with regards to its application of fair value
measurements to significant financial instruments is as follows:

(i) Valuation of fair value instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the amount at which the instruments could
be exchanged in a current transaction between wiling parties, other than in a forced
or liguidation sale,

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. Thersfore, the
fair value of financial instruments, including exchange-traded securities and derivatives
is based on quoted market prices on exchanges or other broker/dealer quotations.

Where guoted market prices or broker/dealer gquotations are not available, prices for
similar instruments or valuation pricing models are considered in the determination of
fair value. Valuation pricing models consider contractual terms, position size, underlying
asset prices, interest rates, dividend rates, time value, volatility and other statistical
measurements for the relevant instruments or for instruments  with  similar
characteristics. These models also incorporate adjustments relating to counterparty
and the Group's own credit risk, the administrative costs of servicing future cash
flows and market liguidity adjustments. These adjustments are fundamental
components of the fair value calculation process. The valuation technigque used
maximises the use of market inputs and minimises the use of entity-specific inputs
which are unobservable in the market.

Valuation pricing models and their underlying assumgtions impact the amount and
timing of unrealised gains and losses recognised, and the use of different valuaticn
pricing models or underlying assumptions could produce different financial results. Any
changes in the fixed income, equity, foreign exchange and commodity markets can
impact the Group's estimates of fair value in the future, potentially affecting trading
and non-trading gains and losses. The Group's estimates of fair value may involve
greater subjectivity due to the lack of transparent market data available upen which
to base assumptions underlying valuation pricing models.
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NOAURA

NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{f) Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued)

(i) Valuation of fair value instruments (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group began including valuation
adjustments in its estimation of fair value of certain OTC derivatives relating to funding
costs associated with these fransactions (o be censistent with how market
participants in the principal market for these derivatives would determine fair value,
This initially involved using the Overnight Indexed Swap curve rather than LIBOR curve
to estimate the fair value of certain collateralised derivative contracts. During the year
ended 31 March 2013, the Group refined its valuation methodology to incorporate
additional features of collateralised derivative transactions. During the year ended 31
March 2014, the Group started using more appropriate inputs to calculate the
valuation adjustment for certain uncollateralised derivalives. This change reflects
increased transparency around how markel participants incorporate this funding cost
into their pricing of such cerivative transactions and consequently, how they estimate
fair value. As part of its continuous review of the valuation methedologies applied by
market participants, the Group may further refing its valuation methodology of
derivatives in future periods.

(i) Recognition of day 1 gains and losses

The fair value of a financial instrument is normally the transaction price (i.e. the fair
vafue of consideration given or received). In some cases, however, the fair value at
inception will be based on a valuation pricing model incorporating only observable
parameters in the market or on other observable current rmarket transactions in the
same instrument, without modification or repackaging. Where such valuation
technigues are used to derive fair values from market chservable inputs, the
difference between fair value and the transaction price is recognised in the profit and
loss account.

Valuation technigues incorporating significant unobservable parameters may alse be
used to determine far valug at inception. In such cases, the difference between the
transaction price and model value is conly recognised in the profit and loss account
when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognisec.
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NOMURA

NOMURA EURCPE HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)
1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{f) Fair Value of Financial Instrurnents {continued)

i) Fair value cption

Certain financial instruments may be designated at fair value by management when
one of the following criteria is met:

1) The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies
the cash flows resulting from the financial instrument;

2) Fair value will eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise result from measuring the financial instruments
on different bases; or

3} The financial instrument is part of a group of financial instruments both managed
and evaluated on a far value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investmant strategy designed to manage such assets at fair
value, laking into consideration the relationship of assets to liabilities in a way that
mitigates market risks. Information abtout these financial instruments is provided
internally on a fair value basis to the Group’s key management personnel.

The fair value option election under 1) and 2) above is undertaken on a product-by-
product basis. This only applies to those instruments that meet one or more of the
above criteria, where fair value would provide a fairer representation of the risks
associated with those instruments. Once made, the fair value option election is
irrevocable.

(9) Fixed Asset Investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakings, which are outside the scope of FRS 28, are stated at
original cost less amounts written off where there has been impairment in value.
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NOMNURA

NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)
1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

(hy  Trading Prcfit

(i) Principal Transactions Income and Expenses

Principal transactions income and expenses include realised and unrealised gains and
losses from proprietary trading activities, asset finance, customer trading activities,
private equity and profits on disposals of related party investments. Principal
transactions income and expenses are generated predominantly by financial
instruments held for trading and financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss. Costs directly attributable to trading are treated as general and
administrative expenses.

(i) Fees and Commission Income and Expenses

Fees and commission income and expenses include gains, losses and fees, net of
syndication expenses arising from securities offerings in which the Group acts as an
underwriter or agent, fees earned from the provision of financial advisory services; as
well as commission income from the provision of brokerage services.

Trading profit arises on a strategy basis across a range of instruments, It is
presented on a net basis, even though the corresponding financial assets and
liabilities may not have been offset on the balance sheet in accordance with the
presentation requirements of FRS 25,

(i) Interest Receivable and Interest Payable

Interest receivable and payable includes dividends and interest paid and earned on securities
positions, as well as interest on financial instruments designated at fair value through the
profit or loss, carried at amortised cost including securities bought and sold under repurchase
agreements, and amounts receivable and payable on bank deposits and bank borrowings.

Interest receivable and payable is recognised in the profit and loss account using the effective
interest rate method for interest bearing financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised
cost.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or liability (or a group of assets and liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts the expected future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument, or when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the
instrument. This calculation takes into account the impact of all fees and commissions paid
or received, directly attributable transaction costs, and discounts or premiums that are integral
to the effective interest rate.
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NOMURA

NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

)] Financial Instruments

Financial instruments within the scope of FRS 26 are classified either as financial assets or
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, financial liabilities at
amortised cost, available-for-sale investments or held-to-maturity investments.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition depending
upon the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired and their characteristics.
For hybrid instruments, the Group considers whether a contract contains an embedded
derivative when the entity first becomes party to it, and detarmings the appropriate
classification at this time.

In accordance with FRS 26, al financial instruments are initially measured at fair value.

(i) Einancial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss includes financial instruments
held for trading and financial instruments designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit and loss.

a. Financial instruments held for trading

Financial assets and liabilties are classified as held for frading if they are
acquired for the purpose of seling in the near term or are part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual paltern of short-term profit taking. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading.
Derivative instruments, as detailed in note 24, are used for trading and risk
management purposes.

In accordance with FRS 26, al derivatives are recognised initially and
subsequently carried at fair value, with derivatives having positive fair values
carried as assets and derivatives with negative fair values carried as liabilities in
the balance sheet.

Some hybrid contracts contain both a derivative and a non-derivative component.
N such cases, the derivative component is termed an embedded derivative. The
majority of hybrid contracts are designated at fair value through profit or loss as
described below. However, where the economic characteristics and risks of
embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of the host contract, and
the fair value option is not elected, the embedded derivative is bifurcated and
reported at fair value with gains and losses being recognised in the profit and
loss account.
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NOMNURA

NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

0] Financial Instruments (continued)

(! Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (continue
b. Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit and loss

Any financial asset or financial liakility within the scope of FRS 26 may be
designated when initially recognised as a financial asset or financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss, assuming the criteria described in note 1{fjii) are
met, except for investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured.

The Group applies the fair value option to the following instruments;

» loans and receivables and repos and reverse repos which are risk managed
on a fair value basis: The Group elects the fair value option to mitigate
income statement volatility caused by the difference in measurement basis for
loans and receivables and the derivatives used to risk manage those
instrumeants;

e Structured notes held and issued: The fair value option is elected primarily as
thase financial insiruments contain an embedded derivative that significantly
modifies the cash flow resuling from the financial instrument; Financial
liabilities associated with  continuing  involvement in assets which are not
derecognised under FRS 26 The fair value option is elected to mitigate
income stateament volatility which would arise between these liabilities and thair
related assets which are measured at fair valug;

e Prepaid OTC Contracts: These are transactions for which an initial investment
of greater than 90% of the notional of the embedded derivative has been
paid or received. The risk on these financial instruments, toth financial assets
and financial liabilities, is primarily hedged using financial instruments
categorised as hald for trading; and

¢ Other Financial Liabilities: These include financial liabilities such as those that
arise upon the consolidation of certain special purpose entities and those that
arise as a result of continuing recognition of certain financial assets and the
simultaneous recognition of an associated financial liability.

When a financial asset or liability designated at fair value through profit and loss
is recognised initially, the Group measures it at its fair value and transaction
costs are taken directly to the profit and loss account. If a reliable measure
becomes available for a financial asset or liability where such a measure was not
previously available, and the asset is required to be measured at fair value if a
refiable measure is available, the asset or liability shall be remeasured at fair
value and the difference between its carrying amount and fair value recognised in
profit and loss. All reliably measurable fair valued financial assats and liabilities are
subsequently held at fair value until derecognition.
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NOMNURA

NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)
1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Financial Instruments (continued)
(i) Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss {continued)

b. Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit and loss
{continued)

Gains or losses on financial instruments at far value through profit and loss,
including gains and losses due to changes in fair value, are recognised in profit
and loss within trading profit. Interest and dividend income or expense is
recorded in interest receivable and similar income according to the terms of the
contract, or when the right to the payment has been established.

(i) Financial instruments at amortised cost
a. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not guoted in an active market. Loans and
receivables are initially recognised on settlement date at fair value, including any
direct and incremental transaction costs. After initial measurement, loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amertised cost using the effective interest
rate method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains
and losses are recognised in the profit and loss account when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process,

Loans and receivables include coliateral paid for securities purchased under
agreements to resell and collateral paid for securities borrowed described below.

b. Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost include financial obligations such as cash
collateral received for securities sold under agreements to repurchase, cash
collateral received for securities loaned, subordinated debt, commercial paper as
well as other creditors. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised
on settlement date. After initial measurement, these instruments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.  Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue
and costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

Collateral received for securities sold under agreements to repurchase and
collateral received for securities loaned are further discussed below,
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NOMURA

NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Financial Instruments {continued}
(i} Financial instruments at amortised cost {continued)

c. Coliateral paid for securities purchased under agreements to resell and
collateral received for securities sold under agreements to repurchase

The Group enters into agreements with counterparties for them to sell to the
Group certain securities and then repurchase them at a later date. These
securities are excluded from the Group's balance sheet and the amount paid by
the Group is shown in debtors as collateral paid for securities purchased under
agreements to resell,

The Group also enters intc agreements to sell certain securities to counterparties
and then repurchase them at a later date. These securities are retained on the
Group’s balance sheet and where they are ic be rehypothecated by the
transferee are shown within held fer trading pledged as collateral.

The cash amount received by the Group is shown within creditors as collateral
received for securities sold under agreements 1o repurchase.

The difference between sale and repurchase price is accrued over the life of the
agreements using the effective interest rate method.

d. Collateral paid for securitics borrowed and collateral received for
securities loaned

The Group enters into agreements with counterparties for them to lend to the
Group certain securities which are then returned to the lender at a later date.
These securities are excluded from the Groupn’s balance sheet and the amount
paid by the Group is shown in debtors as collateral paid for securities borrowed.

The Group alsc enters into agreements tc lend certain  securities to
counterparties, to be returned at a later date. These securities are retained on
the Group’s balance sheet and shown within held for trading pledged as
collateral where they are able to be rehypothecated by the transferee. The cash
amcunt received by the Greup is shown within creditors as collateral received for
securities loaned. The transfer of the securties to counterparties is only reflected
on the balance sheet if the risks and rewards of cwnership are also transferred.
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NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

i) Financial Instruments {continued)

(iii) Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are those non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the two preceding
categories. Available-for-sale investments are initially recognised at fair value, and are
subsequently held at fair value with the unrealised gains or losses being recognised in
the statement of total gains and losses. Transaction costs on equity investments
classified as available-for-sale are capitalised on initial recognition of the investment,

Available-for-sale investments in equity instruments that de not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot De reliably measured are
measured at cost,

When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in the statement of total recegnised gains and losses is recognised in profit and loss
under other operating income or other operating expenses. Where the Group holds
more than one investment in the same security, they are deemed to be disposed of
on a first-in first-out basis. Losses arising from the impairment of such investments
are recognised within other operating income or expense, having been removed from
the cumulative gain or (0ss previcusly recognised in the statement of total recognised
gains and losses. Any foreign exchange gains or losses arising on available-for-sale
financial investments are recognised in profit and loss.

Interest earned whilst holding available-for-sale investments is reporied in interest
receivable and similar income using the effective interest rate.  Dividends eamed

whilst holding available-for-sale investments are also recognised in the profit and loss
account under interest receivable and similar income.

(iv) Held-to-maturity investments

As at the balance sheet date, the Group held no held-to-maturity investments.

28



NOMURA

NOMURA EURQOPE HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

1.

(k)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

impairment

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset s considered
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of cne or more
loss events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and prior to the balance
sheet date, and that less event has had an impact on the estimated future cash fiows of the
financial asset that can be reliably estimated. When estimating the potential impact of an
impairment loss on a collateralised financial asset, expected future cash flows, both from the
asset and the associated collateral, are assessed.

{i) Loans and receivgbles

For loans and receivables, the amcunt of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the assel's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the asset's criginal effective interest rate. The amount
of the loss is included in the profit and loss account. If in a subsequent period the
amount of the imparment loss decreases, and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed in the profit and loss account.

(ii) Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an
unquoted ecquity instrument that is not carried at fair value bscause its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be
settled by the delivery of such an ungucted equity instrument, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses shall
not be reversed except on realisation.
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NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k) Impairment {continued)

(iii) Available-for-sale investments

For available-for-sale investments, the Group assesses at each balance shest date
whether there is objective evidence that an investment or group of investments is
impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence
would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment
below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss -
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the profit and
loss account — is removed from equity and recognised in the profit and loss account,
Impairment losses on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss
account; increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in equity.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, impairment is assessed
based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.  Interest
continues to be accrued at the original effective interest rate on the reduced carrying
amount of the asset and is recorded as part of interest receivable and similar
income. If, in a subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in the profit and loss account, the impairment loss is reversed
through the profit and loss account.

()] Derecognition

Transfers of financial assets and liabilties are assessed to determine if assets can be
derecognised. The Group derecognises financial assets when significantly all the risks and
rewards of the asset are transferred. If significanily all the risks and rewards of the asset are
refained, the Group retains the financial assets on its balance sheet with an associated
liability for consideration recejved. If the Group neither transfers nor retains significantly all the
risks and rewards of the transferred asset, but retains control over the asset, it recognises
the transferred asset and an associated liability measured on a tasis that reflects the rights
and obligations retained by the Group.

{m) Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of
the counterparty. Guidelines are in place covering the acceptability and valuation of each type
of collateral.

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

e For securities lending and reverse repurchase transactions, cash or securities;
e For commercial lending, charges over financial and/or non-financial assets; and
e For derivatives, cash or securities.

Management monitors the market value of ccllateral, and will request additicnal collateral in
accordance with the underlying agreement.
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NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{m) Collateral and cther credit enhancements (continued)

The Group also makes use of master netting agreements with counterparties with whom a
significant volume of transactions are undertaken. Such an arrangement provides for a single
net settlement of all financial instruments covered by the agreement in the event of default on
any one contract. Master netting arrangements do not normally result in an offset of balance
sheet assets and liabilities unless certain conditions for offsetting under FRS 25 apply.

Although master netting arrangements may significantly reduce credit risk, it should be noted
that:

o Credit risk is elminated only to the extent of the amounts due to the same counterparty;
and

» The extent to which overali credit risk is reduced may change substantially within a short
period because the exposure is affected by each transaction subject to the arrangement.

{n)  Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented on a gress basis unless the Group has
a legally enferceable right to set off the financial asset and financial liability and the Group
intends to settle the financial asset and financial liability on a net basis.

{0) Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes fair value of the consideration
paid plus any directly attributable costs to bring the asset to its intended use. Construction in
progress is capitalised on a floor-by-floor basis from the completion date of each floor. The
carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable,

Depreciation rates are selected based on expected useful economic lives of the assets, taking
into account the expected rate of technological developments, markel requirements and
expected use of the assets. The selected rates are regularly reviewed to ensure they remain
appropriate to the Group and Group’s circumstances, Fixed assets are currently depreciated
on a straight-line basis in order to write off their cost over their expected useful economic
lives as follows:

Long leasehold property Over the life of the lease

Short leasehold property Over the life of the lease

Leasehold improvements Over the life of the lease

Furniture, equipment, software and vehicles Five to ten years

Construction in progress Not depreciated until completed and transferred

to asset categories above

Fixed assets are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognised in the profit and loss account as an exceptional item,
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NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)
1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

(P}  Pensicn Costs

One subsidiary, Nomura International plc, operates a defined benefit pension plan, which
requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The defined benefit
pension scheme was closed (o further accrual in October 2005,

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method, which atiributes entitlement to benefits at the date the plan
closed to the current period to determing the present value of the defined benefit obligation
and is based on actuarial advice. Pasl service costs are recognised in the profit and loss
account on a straight-ine basis over the vesting period or immediately if the benefits have
vested. When a settlement (eliminating all obligations for benefits already accrued) or a
curtailment (reducing future obligations as a resull of a material reduction in the scheme
membership or a reduction in future entitlement) occurs, the obligation and related plan
assets are remeasured using actuarial assumptions at the date of the curtailment or
settlement and the resultant gain or loss recognised in the profit and loss account during the
period in which the settlement or curtailment occurs, Losses are measured at the date that
the employer becomes demonstrably committed to the transaction and gains when all parties
whose consent is required are irrevocably committed to the transaction.

The interest element of the defined benefit cost represents the change in present value of
scheme obligations resulting from the passage of time, and is determined ty applying the
discount rate to the cpening present value of the benefit obligation, taking into account
change in the obligaticn during the vear. The expected return on plan assets is based on an
assessment made at the beginning of the year of long-term market retuns on scheme
assets, adjusted for the effect on the fair value of plan assets of contributions received and
benefits paid during the year. The difference between the expected return on plan assets and
the interest cost is recognised in the profit and loss account as other finance income or
expense. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the statement of total recognised
gains and losses in the period in which they occur.

The dsfined benefit pension asset or liability in the balance sheet comprises the total of the
present valiue of the defined benefit abligation {using a discount rate based on high quality
corporate bonds that have been rated at AA or equivalent status and broadly consistent term
to the liabilities), less any past service cost not yet recognised and less the fair value of plan
assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. Fair value is based on market
price information and in the case of quoted securities is the current bid price. The value of a
net pension benefit asset is restricted to the sum of any unrecognised past service costs and
the present value of any amount the Group expects to recover by way of refunds from the
plan or reductions in the future contributions.

In accordance with FRS 17, any defined benefit liatility is shown on the balance sheet net of

deferred tax. Contributions to defined contribution arrangements are recognised in the profit
and loss account in the pericd in which they become payable.
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NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(q) Taxation

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not
reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation
to pay more tax or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet
date. This is subject to deferred tax assets only being recognised if it is considered more
likely than not that there will be suitable profits from which the future reversal of the
underlying timing differences can be deducted. Timing differences are the differences between
the Group’s taxable profits and its resuits as stated in the financial statements, which are
capable of reversal in one or mere subsequent periods.

Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the pericds in which the timing differences are expected to reverse based on tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

n Financial guarantees

The Group issues financial guarantee contracts which reguire that the Group reimburse
holders of such guarantees for any losses suffered due tc a failure by specified debtors to
make payments when due as specified by the terms of an underlying debt instrument. Such
financial guarantees are initially recognised at fair value. The amount initially recognised
includes an adjustment for transaction costs which are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. On a subseqguent measurement basis, value of the financial guarantee is
adjusted to reflect the higher of the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
probable obligation at the reporting date. Any amount recognised is net of cumulative
amortisation previously recognised.

{s} Share-based payments

The ultimate hoiding company, Nomura Holdings, Inc., operates share based awards schemes
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants.  Such share-
based awards are classified as efther equity-settled or cash-settled transactions depending on
the terms of the award.

The cost of both the equity-settled and cash-settled transactions with employees and
Directors is measured by reference to the far value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value of the stock options as of the grant date is estimated using a Black-Scholes
option-pricing madel.
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NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)
1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s) Share-based ments (continued

Expected volatilities based on historical volatiiity of the ultimate holding
company's common stock
Expected dividend vield based on the current dividend rate at the

time of grant

Expected lives of options based on wvesting pericd
granted
Expected number of options based on historical period which will vest
Estimated risk-free based upon Yen swap rates with a
interest rate maturity equal to the expected lives

of options

The cost of eguity-settled transactions is recognised in the profit and loss account, together
with a corresponding increase in reserves, representing the contribution received from the
ultimate holding company, cver the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfiled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (the ‘vesting date’).

The cumulative expense recognised for eguity-settled transactions at each balance sheet date
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting pericd has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of eguity instruments that will ultimately wvest

The charge or credit to the profit and loss account for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are medified, as a minimum an expense is
recognised as if the terms had not been modified.  In addition, an expense is recognised for
any modification which increases the total fair value of the share-based payment arrangement,
or is otherwise beneficial 1o the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an eqguity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancelation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the previcus paragraph.

Cash-setiled transactions such as Notional Stock Unit ('NSU) which will be settled in cash
are classified as liabilty awards. These are remeasured to fair value at each balance sheet
date, net of estimated forfeitures with the final measurement of cumulative compensation cost
egual to the settlement amount. Similar to the equity-settled transactions, compensation cost
is recognised in the profit and loss account over the vesting period.
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NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)
1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{t) Share Capital

Share capital meeting the definition of an equity instrument under FRS 25 is disclosed within
shareholders’ funds. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Preference shares, that provide for mandatery redemption by the issuer for a fixed or
determinable amount at a fixed or determinable future date, or give the holder the right to
require the issuer to redeem the instrument at or after a particular date for a fixed or
determinable amount, are financial liabilities. Convertible preference share capital may be a
compound financial instrument. As required by FRS 25, the components of compound
financial instruments, that contain both liabiity and equity elements, are accounted for
separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after deducting
from the instruments as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the
liability component on the date of issue.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had no issued redeemable convertible participating
preference share capital.

{u) Operating Leases

Rental costs under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-
ine basis over the period of the lease.

(v}  Provisions for liabilities and charges
A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be reguired
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

(w) Cash Flow Statement

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 1 {revised} and has not
produced a cash flow statement, since the Group has more than 90% of its voting rights
controlled by Nomura Holdings, Inc., in whose publicly available financial statements it is
consclidated. Copies of the financial statements of Nomura Heldings, Inc., can be obtained
from 9-1, Nihonbashi 1-chrome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 103-8645, Japan.

(x) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, depcsits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts, Bank overdrafts, if any, are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the
balance sheet.
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NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v) Hedae Accounting

At the inception of a hedging relationship, the group documents the relationship between the
hedging instruments and hedged items, its risk management objective and its strategy for
undertaking the hedge. The group also reguires a documented assessment, both at hedge
inception and con an ongoing basis, of whether or not the hedging instruments, primarily
derivatives, that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in cffsetting the changes
attributable to the hedged risks in the fair values or cash flows of the hedged itemns. Interest
on designated qualifying hedges is included in ‘Interest receivable' cr 'Interest payable’ in the
profit and loss account.

Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of ihe hedging instrument is recegnised in other
comprehensive inccme, within the “Cash flow hedging reserve”, a gain or loss on the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. Gains and losses
previously recognised in other comprenensive income are reclassified te the prefit and loss
account on the dispesal of the feoreign operation.
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NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

2.

Activity

Broking
Dealing
Banking

Total

RETAINED PROFIT

In accordance with Section 408 Companies Act 2008, the Company has taken advantage of
the dispensation not to produce is own profit and loss account. The Company reported a
loss after taxation of $455,482,000 (2013 loss of $1,373,279,000} for the vyear, of which a

loss of $35,823,000 has been recognised in the Group's results.
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

A. Segmental Analysis

2014 2013

Trading (Loss)/profit Trading (Loss)/profit
profit/{loss) on ordinary Net Assets profit/ on ordinary Net Assets

activities ({loss) activities

before before

taxation taxation
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
and 1,516,963 {501,879 2,245,235 2,052,796 (686,611) 3,155,506
54,762 (17,173) 1,383,620 (484,014) (374,077) 442,164
1,671,725 (519,052) 3,828,855 1,668,782 (950,688) 3,587,760

$1,664,662,000 of the trading proft in the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013

$1,838,079,000) is attributable to EMEA and the remaining to offshore markets.

B. Analysis of Broking and Dealing Trading Profit by Financial Instrument Type

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013

$'000 $'000

Net fees and commissions 474,022 546,364

Financial instruments held for trading 1,251,664 1,247,902
Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit

and loss 61,902 529,398

Less: attributable transaction expenses (270,625) {270,868)

1,616,963 2,052,796

Net fees and commissions include amounts arising from securities offerings in which the
Group acts as an underwriter or agent, commissions arising from broking securities and fees

earned from providing financial advisory services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED}

4.

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013

$'000 $000

Gains from sales of available-for-sale investments 431 2,338
431 2,338

Included in ‘gains from sales of available-for-sale investments' are the amounts transferred
irom reserves to the profit and loss account on the derecognition of available-for-sale

investments.

INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

Analysis of Total Interest Income and Expense by Financial Instrument Type

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
$'000 $'000
Interest receivable and similar income
Cash and short-term funds 66,782 g81,892
Securities borrowed and reverse repurchase agreements 783,439 988,827
Other 12,401 16,866
862,622 1,087,685
Financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss 87,491 142,117
950,113 1,229,702
Interest payable and similar charges
Qverdrafts and loans (205,781) (358,103)
Securities lent and repurchase agreements {847,478) (1,436,427)
Other {15,098 (73.810)
{1,068,357) {1,869,340)
Financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss (48,475) (88,043)
(1,116,832 (1,957,383)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

6. LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION

{i) Loss on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging/(crediting):
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
$'000 $'000
Wages, salaries and other personnel costs 1,063,495 1,173,758
Social security costs 109,640 123,417
Pension costs - defined benefit 4,438 29,271
Pension costs - defined contribution 38,852 42 955
Support service charges 12,134 11,995
Depreciation 108,194 114,915
Auditor's remuneration (see note &(ii)} 8,057 5,305
Operating lease costs - buildings 89,578 81,132
- other 1,082 1,172
Interest receivable from fellow subsidiary undertakings {531,874) (691,321)
Interest payable to fellow subsidiary undertakings 690,455 1,236,330

(i) Auditor’s remuneration

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
$000 $'000
Audit of the financial statements 166 198
Audit of subsidiaries 2,034 2,835
Total audit 3,100 3,033
Audit related assurances services 526 306
Other assurance services - 55
Taxation compliance services 269 88
All taxation advisory services - 81
Other non-audit services 2,162 1,742
Total non-audit services 2,957 2,272
8,057 5,305

In addition to the audit fee shown above, an amount of $1,552,991 (2013: $1,450,551) was

bome by the ultimate Parent Company.
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NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

7. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME

A full actuarial valuation of the defined benefit pension scheme was undertaken at 31 March
2014 by Premier Pensions Management Ltd., a qualified independent actuary.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group made n¢ additional contributions and the
fund remained in surplus. The amount that can be recovered through reduced contributions in
the future is the present value of the liability expected to arise from future service by current
and future scheme members less the present value of future employee contributions. As the
plan closed to all future accrual with eflect 31 Octcber 2005, there is no future benefit
accrual and therefore no surplus is to be recognised in the Group's balance sheet. The
expected employer's contribution to the Group’s defined benefit pension scheme for vear
ended 31 March 2014 is Nil (2013: $nil).

Under the projected unit actuarial cost method the current service cost will increase as
members approach retirement.

The major assumptions used by the actuary to calculate the defined benefit liability are set

out below:
31 March 31 March 31 March
2014 2013 2012
% % %
Rate of increase in pensicns in payment 3.66% 3.62% 3.12%
Rate of increase in pensions in deferment 3.66% 3.62% 3.12%
Discount rate applied tc scheme liabilities 4.45% 4.65% 5.04%
Inflation assumption 2.66% 2.82% 2.32%

Life expectancy for mortality tables used to determine benefit obligations at:

31 March 2014 31 March 2013

Years Years
Male Member age 63 (life expectancy at age 60) 30.0 30.1
Male Member age 40 (life expectancy at age 60) 33.3 33.4
Female Member age 63 (life expectancy at age 60) 32.2 32.6
Female Member age 40 (ife expectancy at age 80) 354 358
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7.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The assets and liabilities of the scheme and the expected long-term rates of return were:

31 March 2014

% $'000
Equities -
Bonds 3.70 320,940
Property - -
Cash 0.50 1,047
Annuities 4.45 63,642
Market value of assets 385,629
Present value of
scheme liabilities (284,128
Surplus in the scheme 101,501
Effect of surplus cap {101,501)
Recoverable deficit in
the scheme -
Net pension liability -

%

2.84
3.94
0.50
4.65

31 March 2013

31 March 2012

$000 %
282,282 3.24
19,420 4.34
381 0.50
55,258 5.04
357,341
(257,849)
99,492
(99,492)

$'000

253,862
20,301
385
53,775
328,323

{222,288)
106,035

106,035

The expected return on assets does not allow for expenses as these are paid directly by the

Group.

There is no charge to operating loss in relation to the defined benefit pension scheme {2013

Snil).

The amount charged to the profit and loss account:

Past service cosl

Unrecognised surplus applied to past
service cost

Expected return on pension scheme
assets

Interest on pension scheme liabilities

Other finance charge

Analysis of movements in deficit during the year:

Deficit in scheme at beginning of year
Expected return on pension scheme assets
Interest on pension scheme liabilities
Contributions

Actuarial loss

Deficit in scheme at end of year
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31 March 31 March
2014 2013
$°000 $'000
(5,856) -
5,856 -
11,796 10,850
{(12,413) (10,950)
617) -

31 March 31 March

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
11,796 10,950
(12,413) (10,950)
(617) -
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NOMURA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

7.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The amounts racognised in the Group statement of total recognised gains and losses

{(STRGL) for the year are set out below:

Actual return less expected return on pension scheme

assets
Experience losses arising on scheme liabilities

Changes in assumptions underlying the present value

of the pension scheme liabilities

Actuarial loss recognised in STRGL
Adjustment due to movement in surplus cap
Actuarial loss recognised in STRGL

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

$'000 $'000
(11,247) 39,525
(1,318) (2,327
11,617 (38,366)
(248) (1,168)
948 1,168

The defined benefit pension liability has no effect on the net assets and reserves of the

Group (2013: no effect).

Analysis of movements in benefit obligation and plan assets during the year;

Change in benefit obligations

Berefit obligations at Beginning of year
Interest cost

Actuarial {gain)/loss

Benefits paid

Foreign currency exchange {loss)/gain
Plan amendments

Benefit cbligations at end of year

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial gain

Benefits paid from plan

Foreign currency exchange (loss)/gain

Fair value of plan assets at end of year
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
$000 $'000
257,849 222,289
12,413 10,950
(2,847) 42,308
{7,390) {4,574)
25,252 (13,123
5,857 -

284 128 257,850
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

$'000 $'000
357,341 328,323
11,796 10,532
(10,754) 39,525
(7,396} {4,400}
34,642 _ (16,639)
385,629 357,341
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

7.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

FRS 17 reqguires the cumulative amount recognised in the group statement of total recognised

gains and losses (STRGL) be disclosed as set cut below:

Difference between expected and actual return on
pensicn scheme assets

Experience gains and losses on  pension scheme
liabilities

Total amount recognised in STRGL

Difference between expected and actual return on pension
scheme assets

Experience gains and losses on pension scheme liabilities
Total amount recognised in STRGL

Difference between expected and actual return on pension
scheme assets

Experience gains and losses on pension scheme liabilities
Total amount recognised in STRGL

Difference between expected and actual return on pensicn
scheme assets

Experience gains and losses on pension scheme liabilities
Total amount recognised in STRGL

Difference bhetween expected and actual return on pensicn
scheme assets

Experience gains and losses on pension scheme liabilities
Total amount recognised in STRGL

(a); Percentage based on scheme assets
(b): Percentage based on present value of pension
liabilities
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31 March 2014
% $000
(2.92)% (a) (11,247)
(0.46%) (b) (1,318)

0% (b)

31 March 2013
% $'000
11.06% (a) 39,525

0.90%) b)  (2,327)
0% (b) -

31 March 2012

% $'000
11.67% (a) 38,326
(0.58%) (b) (1,300)
1.14% (b) (2,525)

31 March 2011

% $'000
2.12% (a) 5,927
(0.84%) (b) (1,765)
(2.09%) (b) (4,393)

31 March 2010

% $'000

11.14% () 07,637
2.29% (o) 4,478
(2.02%)(b) (4,158)
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NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

8. TAX CHARGE ON LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013

(a) TAX CHARGE $'000 $000
UK Carporation tax credit at 23% (2013: 24%) {1,420) {6,893)
Qverseas taxation charge 38,8657 26,271
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of prior pericds {11,415) 3568
Total current tax charge 23,822 19,7368
Deferred taxation charge/(credit) (note 16) 4,280 {6,155)
Total tax charge for the year to the profit and loss
account 28,102 13,581
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
(b} RECONCILIATION OF CORPORATION TAX $'000 $'000
CHARGE
Loss on ordinary activities before tax (519,052 (960,688)
UK Corporation tax credit at 23% {2013: 24%) {112,382 (230,565)
Effects of :
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes {48) 25777
Revenues deductible for tax purposes {1,988) (6,467)
Timing differences
- Losses surrendered for nil payment 1,876 12,283
- Deferred emoluments {(18,338) (6,873
- Share based payments (1,239 (6,416)
- Transition adjustment on adoption of FRS 25/28 10,316 10,676
- Tangible fixed assets 6,718 -
- Profit on sale of Gloucester Gate {5,056) -
- Other timing differences {2,425) -
Tax rate differences on foreign subsidiaries 15,717 9,780
Unutilised Yosses during the year carried forward 148,986 220,665
Other tax adjustments - {9,382)
Adjustment to tax charge in respact of pricr periods (11,415) 358

Current corperation tax charge for the year 03,802 19736
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NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

9.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The goodwill arising in the Group financial statement from the acquisition of Starbright Finance
Co., Lid. (formerly GE Capital Finance (China} Co., Lid.) is being amortised over twenty years.
During the vyear the Group made the decision 10 dispose of this subsidiary. Following this
decision, the value of the business was reassessed and the investment in the subsidiary was
reviewed for impairment with the result that the Group reported an exceptional loss of
$28,640,000. The fair value less costs 1o sell was determined by references o price to book
ratio of other similar market transactions, adjusted for relevant factors.

The goodwill arising in the Group financial statements in relation to the acqguisition of Lehman
Brothers’ Inc group {Lehman Brothers”) equities and irvestment banking businesses, Nomura
Code Securities Limited and Tricorn Partners LLP has either been fully amortised or impaired.

Lehman Brothers Other Total
Acquisition
$'000 $'000 $°000
Cost:
At 1 April 2013 69,719 114,614 184,333
Additions - - -
At 31 March 2014 69,719 114,614 184,333
Amortisation & impairment:
At 1 April 2013 69,719 55,439 125,158
Amortisation charged during the year - 3,116 3,115
Irmpairment loss for the year - 28,640 28,640
At 31 March 2014 69,719 87,194 156,913
Net book value at 31 March 2014 - 27,420 27,420
Net book value at 31 March 2013 - 59,175 59,175
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10. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Group

Cost

At 1 April 2013
Transfers
Additions
Disposals
Exchange
differences

At 31 March 2014

Depreciatiocn
At 1 April 2013
Charged
Disposals
Transfers

Exchange
differences

At 31 March 2014

Net book amount

At 31 March 2014

At 31 March 2013

Group

On 3 September 2013, the Group sold the leasehold of a property on Gloucester Gate,
London to a subsidiary of NHI undertaking for £22,000,000 ($34,265,000) and recognised a
gain of $26,334,000. This sale was part of the Nomura Group’s strategy to hold all UK
properties used by the Group in one single legal entity. This gain is reflected in the profit and

Eurniture,

Equipment,

Long Short Leasehold Construction Software &
Leasehold Leasehold |mprovements In Progress Vehicles Total
$'000 $°000 $°000 $’000 $'000 $'000
15,674 33 9,055 414 819,022 844,198
630 - - - 1,880 2,510
4,241 - 2,042 1,126 66,683 74,092
(17,112) - {6,411) {1,4286) {186,372) {211,321)
- 637 {1,157) {520)
3,433 33 5,323 114 700,056 708,959
4685 18 6,979 - 524,834 536,516
569 - 556 107,089 108,194
(4,011) (6,398) {(177,023) {187,432
_ - (120) (120)
- - 532 - _(659) {127)
1,243 18 1,669 454,101 457,031
2,190 15 3,654 114 245,955 251,928
10,989 15 2,076 414 294,188 307,682

loss account as an exceptional gain on disposal.

Company

The Company had no tangible fixed assets (2013: nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

11.

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Company
Investment in
Subsidiary
Cost Undertakings
$'000
At 1 April 2013 9,026,336
Additions 545,022
Disposals (64,710)
At 31 March 2014 9,606,648
Investment in
Subsidiary
Amounts provided Undertakings
$'000
At 1 April 2013 3,768,343
Charge for the year 421,264
At 31 March 2014 4,189,607
Investment in
Subsidiary
Net beook amount Undertakings
$°000
At 31 March 2014 5,317,041
At 31 March 2013 5,257,893

Significant investments during the year were:

The Company acguired $51,932,418 of ordinary shares in Nomura International plc in
September 2013 and a further $470,000,000 of ordinary shares in December 2013.

The carrying value of the Company's investment in NIP has been impaired due to continuing
losses, resulting in an impairment loss of $417,376,000. The value in use calculation used a
discount rate of 10.9%, a growth rate of 2.25% 1o obtain a 20 year forecast after which a
terminal value was calculated. The investment was impaired to NIF's net asset value.

47



NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

11. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOMNURA

The following were subsidiary undertakings at the end of the year and have all been included in the

group financial statements:

Subsidiary undertakings
Banque Nomura France, S.A.

Nomura Bank International plc
Nomura International plc

Nomura Code Securities Limited *
Nomura Bank {Luxembourg) S.A.
Nornura Bank (Switzerland) Limited

Nomura Nederland N.V,

Nomura Corporate Advisory (Central
and Eastern Europe) Sp. z o.0.

Nomura Investment Banking B.S.C.

OO0 Nomura *

Nomura Istanbul Corporate Advisory
Services A.S.

Nomura Alternative Investments
Management (Europe) Limited

Nomura Saudi Arabia

Held via subsidiary undertakings
Nomura Bank (Luxembourg} S.A:
Global Funds Trust Group

Global Funds Management S.A.
Master Trust Company

Country of
incorporation or

registration

France

UK

UK

UK
Luxembourg
Switzerland

Netherlands
Poland

Middle East

Russia
Turkey

UK

Middle East

Cayman lIslands
Luxembourg
Cayman Islands

Proportion of voting

Nature of business

rights and ordinary
share capital held

Group Company
100% 99%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

100% -
100%
100%

Banking
Banking
Trading
Investment banking
Banking
Banking
Trading

Financial advisory

Financial advisory

Capital markets
Capital markets

Investment management

Investment banking

Management group
Fund management

Management company

On 2 April 2013 Nomura Investment Banking B.S.C. sold its investment in Nomura Saudi Arabia to

the Company.

Nomura (CIS} Limited, a subsidiary undertaking as at 31 March 2013 was liquidated during July

2013.

On 30 September 2013 Nomura Bank (Deutschland) GmBH ("NBD"), a former subsidiary of the
Company became a branch of NIP. In May 2014 the Group opened a representative office in

Istanbul, Turkey.

* Currently in members voluntary liquidation

48



NOMNURA

NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

11, FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Country of Proportion of voting Nature of
incorporation  rights and ordinary business
or registration share capital held
Group
Held via subsidiary undertakings
{continued)
Nomura International plc:
Nomura Investments {(AH) Limited Guernsey 100% Investment
Nomura PB Nominee Limited England and 100% Investment
Wales
Nomura Custody Nominees Limited England and 100% Investment
Wales
Nomura D1 Nominee Limited England and 100% Investment
Wales
Nomura Derivatives Clearing Nominee England and 100% Investment
Limited Wales
Nomura PB Beneficial Cwnership England and 100% Investment
Markets Limited Wales
Nomura Clearance and Settlement England and 100% Investment
Nominees Limited Wales
Nomura RPS Limited England and 100% Investment adviser
Wales
Nomura Investment Advisor LLP England and 50% Investment adviser
Wales
Nomura Private Equity Investment GP England and 100% Investment manager
Limited Wales
Nomura Employment Services (Isle of Isle of Man 100% Employment
Man) Limited Services
Nomura Nominees Limited England and 100% Custody
Wales
Nomura.com Limited England and Dormant
Wales 100%
Nomura London Retirement Benefits England and Corporate
Plan Trustee Limited Wales 100% Trustee
IBJ Nomura Financial Products (UK) England and
ple * Wales 100% (n Liquidation
England and
Nomura Investment Solutions RIS x4 Wales 58.97% Investment
England and
Nomura Investment Solutions Macs Wales  100% Investment
England and
Nomura HFR EM Master FOF Wales 100% (nvestment
England and
Meymott Street Holdings Limited ™~ Wales - Investment
Meymott Street Acquisitions Limited *=  England and
Wales Investment
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11. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

* currently in members voluntary liguidation.

** The Group holds warrants wnich enables it to exarcise control,

Tricorn Partners LLP, which was heid via subsidiary undertakings has been liquidated on 12
February 2014.

Country of Proportion of voting rights Nature of
incorporation or and ordinary share capital business
registration held

Grobapup Compgloynpany

Held via subsidiary undertakings

(continued)

Nomura Bank International Plc:

Starbright Finance Co., Ltd. China 100% - Banking
{formerly GE Capital Finance {(China)

Co., Ltd)

Taku us 100% - SPV
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

11. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Quasi-subsidiaries

The summarised and combined financial statements of these quasi-subsidiaries are as follows:

2014 2014 2013 2013

Profit and loss account $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Trading profit - -

Interest receivable and similar income - -
Interest payable and similar charges - -

Profit on crdinary activities before taxation - -
Taxation -

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation -

Balance Sheet

Current assets

Financial assets held for trading - -
Bank and corporate bonds 83,341 66,213
Other debtors 345,087 486,794

428,408 558,007
Creditors {amounts falling due within one year):
Other crediters - -
Swap contracts (12,186) (15,236)
Debt securities in issue - -

Total assets less current liabilities 416,222 537,771

Long term liabilities

Debt securities in issue (416,222) {837,771)
Reserves
Profit and loss account - -

Shareholders’ funds - _
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NOMURA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

12.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities by FRS 26 classification

Financial Assets:

Available-for-sale
investmenis

Held for trading

Designaled falr value
through profit and loss
Collateral paid for
securilies

purchased under
agreements  to resell
Colateral paid for
securities

borrowed

Trade debtors

Qther debtors

Invesiments - time
deposits

Cash at bank and in
hand

Financial Liabilities:
Held for trading

Dasignated fair value
through profit and loss
Collateral received for
securities sold under
agreements to repurchase
Collateral received for
securities loaned

Trade cregitors

Other creditors

Loans and overdrafls

Subordinated debt
Creditors (amounts (alling
due after more than one
year)

2014 2014 2014 2014 201 2014
Available- Held for Designated at Loans and Financial Total
for~sale trading fair value receivables liabilities at
investments through profit amortised cost
and loss
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000
8,216 - - - 8,216
- 282,201,987 - 282,201,987
17,804,491 17,804,491
- - 126,427,301 - 126,427,301
- - 18,523,560 - 18,523,580
- 3,124,992 3.124,992
- 11,882,745 11,882,745
- - - 2,439,201 - 2,489,201
4,136,510 - 4,136,510
8.216 282,201,987 17,804,491 166,584,309 3 466,598,003
- (257,572,229) - - (257,572,229
) ) {(14,264,510) - - {14,264,510)
- - (128,349,248) (128,349,248)
- - - (14,350,606) (14,350,606)
- (4,003,087) {4,003,087)
. ) ) (31,314,332 (31,314,332
- - (6,116,444) (6,116,444)
- (6,375,000} (6,375,000
- - - {804,040} (904,040)
~ (257,572,229) (14,264,510} (191,412,757} (463,249,496}
8,216 24,629,758 3,539,981 166,584,309 (191,412,757) 3,349,507
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

12.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOMURA

Analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities by FRS 26 classification

{continued}

Financial Assets:
Available-for-sale
investimenis

Held for trading

Designated fair value
through profit and loss
Collateral paid for securilies
purchased under
agreements [0 resell
Collateral paid for securilies
borrowed

Trade deblors

Other debtors

Investments - time
deposits
Cash at bank and in hand

Financial Liabilities:
Held for trading

Designated fair value
through profit and loss
Collateral received for
securities sold under
agreements to repurchase
Collateral received for
securities loaned

Trade creditors

Other creditors
Loans and overdrafts

Subordinated debt
Creditors  {amounts faling
due after more than one
year)

2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013

Available-for- Held for Designated at Loans and Financial Total
sale trading fair value receivables liabilities at
investments through profit amaortised
and loss cost

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2,073 - - 2,073

) 220,511,141 - 220,511,141

- 23,809,450 - - 23,809,450

- - - 138,112,583 - 138,112,583

16,251,621 - 16,251,621

- - 2,621,198 - 2,521,198

- - - 13,388,027 - 13,388,027

- - 2,454,176 2,454 176

) ) 6,638,737 - 6,638,737

2,073 220,511,141 23,809,450 179,366,342 - 423,688,006

(210,668,272} - - - {210,568,272)

- (16,970.258) - (16,970,259)

- - (128,874,807) (128,874,807)

- - - (9,803,292) (9,903,292)

- - (4,298,014) (4,298,014)

) ) (34,277,702) (34,277,702)

- ) . {8.107.555) (8,107,535)

- - - - {5,275,000) (5,275,000}

- (2,183,202) (2,183,202)

(210,568,272} {16.970,259) - (192,919,572) {420,458,108)
2,073 9,942,869 6,839,191 179,366,342 {192,919,572) 3,230,903
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

12.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities by FRS 26 classification
(continued)

Included within the loans and receivables above are the following positions with fellow Nomura
Group undertakings:

2014 2013
Loans and receivables: $000 $'000
Collateral paid for securities purchased under
agreements to resell 50,051,284 61,514,690
Collateral paid for securities borrowed 6,140,043 6,001,454
Trade debtors 1,161,560 229,531
Other debtors 4,739,126 7,463,723
Investments - time deposits 624,944 1,086,310
62,716,957 76,295,708

Included within the financial liabilities at amortised cost above are the following positions with fellow
Nomura Group undertakings:

2014 2013
$'000 $°000
Financial liabilities at amortised cost;
Collateral received for securities sold undar
agreements to repurchase {32,073,018) (42,097,123
Collateral received for securities loaned {6,653,157) (3,730,188)
Trade creditors (385,798) (222,905)
Other creditors {(13,152,140) {19,031,165)
Loans and overdrafts (5,261,333) {7,716,1586)
Subordinated debt (6,375,000) {5,275,000)
(63,200,446) _ (78,072,537)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

12.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUED)

Analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities by product type

NOMNURA

The following table analyses the Group's available-for-sale investments, held for trading and
designated fair value through profit and loss financial assets and liabilities by product type:

Financial assets:

Equity securities

Debt securities

Derivatives

Financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit and loss

Financial liabilities:

Equity securities

Debt securities

Derivatives

Financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit and loss

2014 2013
$000 $000
15,177,224 6,032,467
54,626,210 34,514,658
212,406,771 179,561,357
17,804,489 23,314,182
300,014,694 244,322,664
(4,318,291) (8,399,165)
(38,766,197) (23,621,770)
(214,487,740) (174,798,990)
(14,264,511) (20,718,606)
(271,836,739) (227,538,531)

Included within the financial assets and financial liabilities above are the following positions with

fellow Nomura Group undertakings:

Financial assets:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Derivatives

Financial liabilities:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Derivatives

55

2014 2013

$’000 $'000
196,785 402,183
4,223 4,262
107,870,021 94,774,393
108,071,029 95,180,838
(47,897) {147,848)
(218,178) (228,858)
(112,754,504) (96,746,814

(113,020,577)

(97,123,518)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

12.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities by product type (continued)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments include unguoted equity instruments which are measured at
cost because their fair value cannot be measured reliably. As at 31 March 2014, such
unguoted equity instruments measured at cost comprised of investments in other Nomura
entities and market bodies which the Group is required to hold for strategic purposes. The
value of such investments measured at cost held at the balance sheet date amounted to
$6,948,307 (2013; $400,403).

Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

The following financial assets and liabilities have been designated at fair value through profit

and loss:

Prepaid OTC Contracts:

Structured Note
lssuances:

Other Financial Liabilities:

These prepaid OTC contracts are designated at fair value as such
contracts contain an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the
cash flow resultng from the financial instrurments. The financial
instruments, with which they are hedged, are aiso designated at fair
value to mitigate income statement volatility which would arise between
these instruments and their related OTC contracts.

The fair value option is elected for structured notes because these are
managed by the business lines on a fair value basis.

The fair value cption is elected to mitigate income statement volatiiity
which would arise between these liabilities and their related assets
which are measuraed at fair value,

Included within dealing losses on financial instruments designated at far value through profit
and loss is a loss of $88,518,970 (2013 profit of $313,329,503) in relation to changes in

own credit risk.
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13. DERECOGNISED AND COLLATERALISED TRANSACTIONS
Transfers of financial assets, including pledges of collateral

In the ordinary course of business, the Group enters into transactions resulting in the transfer
of financial assets to third parties which may not result in the full derecognition of the assets
under FRS 26.

The following table shows the carying amount of financial assets sold or otherwise
transferred which do not qualify for derecognition and continue to be recognised on the
balance sheet, together with their associated financial liabilities:

2014 2014 2014
Einancial Financial Difference
assets liabilities
$'000 $000 $'000
Collateral received for securities sold under
agreements to repurchase 41,220,876 (39,012,395) 2,208,481
Collateral received for securities loaned 2,324,834 {2,308,011) 16,823
Other 1,117,834 (1,117,834 -
44,663,544 (42,438,240 2,225,304
2013 2013 2013
Financial Financial Difference
assets liabilities
$'000 $'000 $'000
Collateral recsived for securities sold under
agreements 1o repurchase 21,503,375 {21,602,634) {99,159)
Collateral received for securities loaned 2,082,299 (2,043,570) 38,729
Other 990,857 (990,857) -
24,576,531 (24,636,961) {60,430)

Financial asset transfers which do not result in derecognition predominantly result from
secured  financing transactions such as repurchase agreements or securities lending
transactions. Under these types of ftransactions, the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards asscciated with the transferred assets including market risk, issuer risk, credit
risk and settlement risk. Effectively, these assets are pledged as security for borrowings,
represented by the associated financial liabllities recognised. Financial assets may also be
transferred, but not derecognised, as the risks and rewards associated with those assets
continue to be retained by the Group through derivatives or similar instruments. In such
cases, the financial assel continues to be recognised on balance sheet with an asscciated
liability representing the cash received on the transfer as a secured borrowing.
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13. DERECOGNISED AND COLLATERALISED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Transfers of financial assets, including pledges of collateral (continued)

The transactions above are conducted under standard terms used by financial market
participants as well as requirements determined by exchanges where the Group acts as
intermediary. These transactions are conducted with counterparties subject to the Group's
normal risk control processes. The counterparties have the right to resell or repledge the
transferred financial assets under standard market agreements.

Continuing involvement

In addition to the financial assets transferred but not derecognised and retained in their
entirety on the Group's balance sheet outlined above, there are also a number of
transactions in which the Group neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of the financial asset. As the Group retaing control over those assets, it is
considered to have a continuing involvement with those financial assets for accounting
purposes.

Financial assets transfers which result in continuing involvement result from the partial
retention of the risks and rewards associated with those assets by the Group through
derivatives or similar instruments. In such cases, the financial asset continues to be
recognised on the balance sheet at the level of the Group's continuing involvernent with a
correspoanaing liability.

The following table shows the carying amount of financial assets sold or otherwise
transferred in which the Group has continuing involvement, together with the level of the
Group's associated financial liabilities and its net econocmic exposure, representing the fair
value of the associated derivative or similar instruments:

2014 2014 2014
Total carrying value of Total carrying value of Net economic exposure

financial assets with associated liability

continuing involvement

$°000 $'000 $'000
52,290  (52,290) -
52,290  {52,290) -
2013 2013 2013

Total carrying value of
financial assets with

continuing involvement

Total carrying value of

Net economic exposure

associated liability

$'000 $'000 $'000
982,693 (983,704) 1,011
882,693 (983,704) 1,011
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13.

14.

DERECOGNISED AND COLLATERALISED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Financial assets accepted as collateral

Financial assets are accepted as collateral as paris of reverse repurchase arrangements or
securities borrowing transactions which the Group is permitted to sell or repledge under
standard market documentation.

The fair value of financial assets accepted as collateral that the Group is permitted to sell or
repledge in the absence of default is $230 bilion {(2013: $237 bilion). Of this amount, $185
hilicn {2013: $200 bilion) has been sold or repledged to comply with commitments under
short-sale transactions or in connection with financing activities. Included within these balances
are $36 hilion (2013: $533 bilion} of balance due to fellow Nomura Group undertakings. The
corresponding cbligation to return securities received which have been scold or repledged is
$1.7 bilion (2013: $1.9 billion).

TRADE DEBTORS
Group 2014 2013
Amounts falling due within one year:

Trade debtors 3,124,992 2,521,198

Included within debtor balances above are the following balances due from fellow Nomura
Group undartakings:

2014 2013
$000 $'000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors 1,161,560 229,531

Company

The Company has no trade debtors (2013: $nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

15.

OTHER DEBTORS

Group

Amounts falling due within one year:

Broker balances

Loans and advances 1o customers on banking business
Deferred taxation asset (note 18)

Taxation recoverable

Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

Group

Amounts falling due after one year:

Other debtors

Total Group Debtors

60

2014 2013
$'000 $’000
10,171,902 11,189,629
42,659 745
6,002 11,472
18,138 13,049
913,942 1,161,288
708,521 729,040
11,861,164 13,105,223
2014 2013
$'000 $’000
21,681 282,804
21,581 282,804
11,882,745 13,388,027
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

15.

OTHER DEBTORS (CONTINUED)

Group

Included within debtor balances above are the following balances due from fellow Nomura

Group undertakings:

Amounts falling due within one year:

Broker balances
Prepayments and accrued income

Amounts falling due after one year:

Other debtors

Company

Amounts falling due within one year:

Advances to subsidiaries
Prepayments and accrued income

Amounts falling due after one year:

Advances to subsidiaries

Total Company Debtors

61

2014 2013

$'000 $'000

4,302,810 6,881,703

436,267 329,150

4,739,077 7,210,853

2014 2013

$'000 $'000

49 252,870

49 252,870
2014 2013
$'000 $°000
18,627 1,131,375
16,357 15,090
34,984 1,146,465
5,475,000 4,375,000
5,475,000 4,375,800
5,509,964 5,621,465
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16. DEFERRED TAXATION

Group
Deferred tax asset/(liability) comprises:
2014 2013
Group Group
$'000 $'000
Accelerated depreciation 29,816 24,668
FRS 26 transition liabilities (17,944) (30,953)
Other short-term timing differences 48,221 69,355
Accrued Pension and severance cost - 721
Unutitised tax losses 881,077 893,661
Deferred tax not provided (935,168) (946,980)
Total deferred tax asset/(liability) 6,002 11,472
Deferred taxation movements are:
As at 1 April 11,472 5,407

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profit and loss

account (4,280) 6,155
Effect of change in tax rate - -
Sale of subsidiary - -

Transfer to subsidiary (1,831) -
Exchange differences 641 80y
At 31 March 6,002 11,472

The deferred tax included in the balance sheet is as follows:

Included in debtors faling due within one year {note
15) 6,002 11,472
Included in creditors failing due after more than one
year {note 20) - -

6.002 11,472

The Group has an unrecognised deferred tax asset of $881,077,000 (2013: $893,661,000) relating
to carried forward tax losses which has not been recognised due to uncertainty over the timing of
future profitability.

Deferred taxation assets have not been recognised as there is insufficient evidence of future
profitability. They have been disclosed at 20% in the accounts {2013: 23%) reflecting the reduction
in the UK corporation tax rate to 20% which takes effect from 1 April 2015 and which was
enacted by the balance sheet date.
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16.

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Company

The Company has an unrecognised deferred tax asset of $60,361,773 (2013: $61,280,000) relating
to carried forward tax losses which has not been recognised due to uncertainty over the timing of
future profitability.

Deferred taxation assets have not been recognised as there is insufficient evidence of future
profitability. They have been disclosed at 20% in the accounts (2013: 23%) reflecting the reduction
in the UK corporation tax rate to 20% which takes effect from 1 April 2015 and which was
enacted by the balance sheet date.

17.

TRADE CREDITORS

Group 2014
$'000
Trade creditors 4,003,087

Included within the creditor balances above are the following balances due to fellow Nomura

Greup undertakings:

2014 2013
$’000 $'000
Trade creditors 385,798 222,905
Company 2014 2013
$'000 $000
Trade creditors 1,285 1,259

The Group had no ameunts due to fellow Nomura Group undertakings (2013; $nil).
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18.

LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

Group 2014
Amounts falling due within one year $'000
Loans and overdrafts 6,116,444

2013
$'000

£,107,555

Included within the Ioans and overdrafts above are the following balances due to fellow

Nomura Group companies:

2014 2013
Amounts falling due within one year $'000 $000
Loans and overdrafts 5,261,333 7,716,156
Company 2014 2013
Amounts falling due within one year $'000 $'000
Subordinated Debt - 1,100,000
Loans and overdrafts 1,225,141 1,132,554
Group 2014 013
Amounts falling due after one year $000 $'000
Loans and overdrafts — owed to subsidiary undsrtaking 815,874 2,146,988

Group

included within loans and overdrafts above are the following balances due to fellow Nomura

Group companies:

2014 2013
Amounts falling due after one year $'000 $'000
Loans and overdrafts — owed to subsidiary undertaking 821,078 1,818,189
Company 2014 2013
Amounts falling due after one year $000 $'000

Loans and overdrafts — owed to subsidiary undertaking -
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19.

OTHER CREDITORS (AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR)

Group 2014 2013
$°000 $'000
Deposits received from banking customers 3,722,623 6,334,594
Debt securities in issue 23,100 20,059
Accruals and deferred income 1,368,126 1,415,166
Broker balances 26,076,738 26,470,687
Income taxes payable 31,316 32,871
Other creditors 92,429 4,325
31,314,332 34,277,702

Group

Included within creditor balances above are the following balances
Group companies:

dus to fellow Nomura

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Accruals and deferred income 201,872 201,738
Broker balances 12,860,268 18,829,427
13,152,140 16,031,165

Company
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Accruals and deferred income 20,656 17,911
20,656 17,911

65



w W
e s
ey At

y L
¥ v

NOMANURA

NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

20. OTHER CREDITORS (AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR})

Group 2014 2013
$'000 $000
Debt securities in issue 88,166 36,214
88,166 36,214

There are no other creditors (amounts faling due after more than one year) due to fellow
Group undertakings (2013 $nil).

The Company has no other creditors (amounts falling due after more than one year).

Debt securities in issua are repayable within five years.

Senior debt is repayable between two years and six years.
Other creditors are repayable batween one and five years.
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21.

SUBORDINATED DEBT

Group

Long Term

Nomura Eurcpe Finance NV

Nomura Europe Finance NV
Nomura Europe Finance NV
Nomura Europe Finance NV
Nomura Europe Finance NV
Nomura Eurcpe Finance NV
Nomura Eurcpe Finance NV
Nomura Eurcpe Finance NV
Nomura Holdings Inc

Group
Short Term

Nomura Europe Finance NV
Nomura Europe Finance NV

Maturity
date Reference Rate
15/35/2015  § 3 month Libor
02/03/2020 $ 3 month Libor
12/03/2020 % 3 month Libor
09/03/2020  § 3 month Libor
11/03/2020 % 3 month Libor
15/05/2020 ¥ 3 month Ubor
15/04/2020 ¥ 3 month Libor
23/04/2020 ¥ 3 month Libor
Perpetual $ 3 month Libor
Maturity
date Reference Rate

15/04/2013  § 3 month Libor
23/04/2013 8 3 month Libor

TOTAL

67

195

226
225
225
225
125
225
185
285

155
158

2014 2013
$'000 $'000

- 200,000

- 1,100,000

700,000 700,000
2,000,000 300,000
750,000 750,000
200,000 -
500,000 -
600,000 -
1,625,000 1,625,000
6,375,000 5,275,000
2014 2013
$'000 $'000

- 500,000

- 600,000

- 1,100,000
6,375,000 6,375,000
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NOMNURA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

21.

SUBORDINATED DEBT (CONTINUED)

Company

Long Term

Nomura
Nomura
Nomura
Nomura
Nomura
Nomura
Nomura
Nomura
Nomura

Europe Finance
Europe Finance
Europe Finance
Europe Finance
Europe Finance
Europe Finance
Europe Finance
Europe Finance
Holdings Inc

Company

Short Term

NV
NV
NV
NV
NV
NV
NV
NV

Nomura Europe Finance NV
Nomura Europe Finance NV

The legal nature of the subordinated loans differs from that usually associated with debt. In a
winding up of the Group no amount will be paid in respect of the subordinated debt until all
other creditors have been paid in ful. In addition, the Group must obtain consent from the
Financial Services Authority to repay any of the subordinated loans before their contractual

repayment date.

The interests rates on the subordinated loans are based on local inter bank borrowing rates

Maturity
date

16/06/2015
09/03/2020
12/03/2020
09/03/2020
11/03/2020
15/05/2020
15/04/2020
23/04/2020
Perpetual

Maturity
date

15/04/2013
23/04/2013

A WK W R R B A h
W W Wwwwww

month
month
month
month
maonth
month
month
month
rmonth

Reference Rate

Libor
Libor
Libor
Libor
Libor
Libor
Licor
Libor
Libor

Reference Rate

$ 3 month Libor
$ 3 month Libor

TOTAL

Spread
over

—
(-
o}
=

B

196
226
225
225
225
1956
225
185
285

Spread
over
Libor

(bp)

155
155

2014 2013

$'000 $'000

- 200,000

- 1,100,000

700,000 700,000

2,000,000 900,000

750,000 750,000

200,000 -
500,000

£00,000 -

1,625,000 1,625,000

6,375,000 5,275,000

2014 2013

$'000 $'000

- 500,000

- 600,000

- 1,100,000

©,375,000 6,375,000

and include a margin to reflect the subordination. Rates are generally fixed quarterly.
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22. SHARE CAPITAL

2014 ull id
Number Consideration

‘000 $'000

US Dollar Crdinary shares of $1 each 7,636,322 7,636,322
7,636,322

2013 Fully paid
Number Consideration

‘000 $'000

US Dollar Crdinary shares of $1 sach 7,166,322 7,166,322
7,166,322

The Company issued 470,000,000 ordinary shares of $1 each for consideration of
$470,000,000 during the financial vear.
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23. RESERVES

Group

At 1 April 2013

Transfer from P&L
Actuarial loss on
pension scheme
Gain on available-for-
sale investments

Realised gains on
availaile-for-sale
investments reclassified
to the profit and loss
account on disposal
Current tax charge
recognised in the
statement of total
recognised gains and
losses

Maovermnent on current
tax (FRS 26)
Share-based payment
expense for the year
Exchange difference on
re-translation of
subsidiaries

Retained profit for the
year

At 31 March 2014

Other Redenomi Share-based Share  Available- Translation Profit and loss

reserve nation payment premium for-sale reserve account
reserve reserve reserve

$°000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

(266,094) 37,373 583,468 7,188 8,010 370,780 (4,317 887)

- - - 5,655 -

- - - (431) - -

- - - - (1,201) -

- i 104,784 - - i -

- - - - 531 -

- - - - - (547,154}

(266,094) 37,373 688,252 7,188 12,033 371,311 (4,865,041}

Included in net exchange adjustments are exchange gains of $60,512,000 (profit 2013: $37,972,000)

arising on borrowings denominated in

investmeants ovarseas.

Company

At 1 April 2013
Foreign currency gain

Retained loss for the year
Loss on disposal of investment

due to group restructuring

At 31 March 2014

foreign currencies designated as hedges of net equity

Other Bedencmination Share Profit and loss
reserve reserve premium account
$’000 $'000 $'000 $°000
(111,450) 37,373 7,188 (3,846,699)
(60,721) - ) .
- - - (455,482)

- - - (1,588)
(172,171) 37,373 7,188 {4,303,769)
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24, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities involve both the assumption and transfer of certain risks which the
Group must manage.

The Group defines risks as (i) the potential erosion of the Group’s capital base dug to
unexpected losses arising from risks which its business operations are exposed, such as
market risk, credit risk, operational risk and model risk, (i} liquidity risk, the potential lack of
access to funds or higher cost of funding than normal levels due to a deterioration in the
creditworthiness of NHI or deterioration in market conditions, and (i) business risk, the
potential failure of revenues to cover costs due to a deterioration in the earnings environment
or a deterioration in the efficiency or effectiveness of its business operations.

The Capital Requirements Directive IV ("CRD V"), including the Capital Requirements
Regulation (CRR), requires the Group to publish both Pillar 3 and country by country
reporting disclosures. This information has been made publically available on the below
website:

http://vaww.nomuraholdings.com/company/group/europe

The Group’'s risk strategy comprises a key component of the overall NHI risk strategy and is
closely linked to that broader risk strategy. The Group's risk strategy has been established
using a similar risk management framework as the one for NHI and is articulated by the
Board through three key elements:

e risk taking is a component of the business strategy approved by the Board;

* risk governance is established through the Board-approved committee structure, risk
policies and devolved individual accountabilities for risk management; and

2 risk appetite framework is established to facilitate the evaluation of material decisions
at senior executive levels.

Risk Appetite

The Group's risk appetite defines the type and cuantum of risk that the Group is willing to
accept in pursuit of its objectives. The purpose of the risk appetite framework includes (out is
not limited to) guiding the allocation of internal capital, and establishing clear directives with
respect to the acceptabilty or otherwise of certain risk types. It is designed to allow the
Group to manage risk in a proactive manner, and to minimise negative surprises.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

In line with the NHI risk appetite framework, the Group's risk appetite includes both
quantitative measures and qualitative statements covering all risk classes. These statements
further detailed below are subject to regular monitoring and measured against specific
thresholds set internaily and any breach is reviewed and escalated as appropriate for further
resolution:

o Quantitative measures, which are metrics with defined trigger and monitoring levels
aligned to one of the following dimensions:

o regulatory capital (e.g., available capital versus regulatory capital requirement, Tier 1
capital ratio, Risk Weighted Assets);

economic capital {e.g.. Nomura Capital Allocation Target or “NCAT");
o liquidity/funding (e.qg., severe liquidity stress and acute liquidity stress scenarios);

stress testing (e.g., estimated potential losses resulting from a Severe Market and
Economic Downturn scenario versus availabie capital);

o Operational risk (e.g., losses as a percentage of gross revenues on a 12-month
rolling basis).

= Qualitative expressions, which reflect the need to manage explicitly unguantifiable risks
across operational, reputational, legal, model, market and credit risk types.

The Group’'s risk appetite statements are approved by the Board, and tracked and
communicated to that forum on an ongoing basis. There is clear ownership and accountabiiity
for each category of risk and individual risk appetite measures across both quantitative and
qualitative components, The risk appatite statements may be reviewed on an ad hoc basis,
and must specifically be reviewed following any significant changes in strategy.

The Role of Financial Instruments

The Group holds or issues financial instruments for two main purposes:

» Trading Activities - to facilitate the needs of its client base and for trading purposes on its
own account

e Financing Activities - to finance its operations and to manage the interest rate and
currency risk arising from its financing activities

Trading Activities
Trading includes both customer-grientated activities and positions that are taken for the

Group's own account. These two activities are managed together.

To meet the expected needs of its client base the Group maintaing access to market
liquidity, both by engaging in two way business with other market makers and by carrving an
inventory of cash and derivatives products. The Group also takes its own positions in the
interest rate, credit, equity and foreign exchange markets based on expectations of future
client demand and its own views on the future direction of markets,

Within its trading activities, the Group employs standard market terms and conditions.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The financial instruments listed below are actively used by the Group. They are used both to
facilitate customer business, for own account trading as well as to manage risk. In the
ardinary course of business these products are valued on a mark to market basis, with the
resulling income being recorded in trading profits.

Cash Products Government bonds, Corporate bonds, Asset backed bonds,
Convertible bonds, Equities and FX.

Currency and Commodity Forward FX contracts, Currency swaps, Currency options,

Derivatives Commodity forwards, Commodity swaps and Commaodity
options.
Interest Rate Derivatives Interest rate swaps, Forward rale agreements, Forwards,

Options, Swaptions, Currency swaps, Hybrids, Leveraged
derivatives and other Exotic IR linked derivative products.

Equity Derivatives Stocks, Index futures, Variance swaps, Options, Warrants
and other Exotic equity and Alternative asset linked derivative
products.

Credit Derivatives Asset swaps, Credit default swaps, Credit options, First to

Default credit baskets, Credit linked notes, Synthetic CDO
tranches, CDO squared tranches, Hybrids and combinations
of these.

The interest rate, credit, equity and foreign exchange risks that arise from activities in these
products are managed through the Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies,
which are described in more detail in the next section.

Financing Activities

The responsibility for unsecured funding, managing the liquidity pool and any resulting interest
rate and foreign exchange risk lies with the Treasury function. The Treasury function is
managed globally and reports to the Chief Financial Officer (“CFQ") and is fully independent of
the trading activities. The Treasury function's primary respansibility is to pro-actively manage
the liquidity and financing needs of the Group via a diversified financing programme,
supported by a comprehensive and tested contingency plan. The Treasury function is nat
authorised to take positions for its own account and it is not judged on the basis of profit,

The distribution of sources of funding and their maturity profile are actively managed in order
to ensure access to funds and to avoid a concentration of funding at any one time or from
any one source. The main funding sources used by the Treasury function include capital,
intercompany borrowings, long-term debt and committed credit facilities. The Group's trading
activities are typically funded on a secured basis through repurchase agreements, as we
believe these funding activities in the secured markets are more cost-effective and less credit
sensitive than financing in the unsecured market. We manage the risks by transacting with a
large number of counterparties over various durations with a diverse range of security types.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Risk Management Structure

The Board is ultimately responsible for identifying and controlling risks through its overall risk
management appreach and approval of risk stralegies and principles. Risk reporting and
control is undertaken by the following departments and committees within the Group:

Capital Allocation

The annual process for budgeting entity level capital needs is part of the ICAAP exercise
which takes place in conjunction with the budget related processes. The setting of all current
and budgeted capital reguirements relating to UK-regulated entities is coordinated and
challenged by the Financial and Regulatory Control functions within EMEA  Finance. The
Financial and Regulatory Control functions are also responsible for monitoring compliance with
capital usage limits to ensure capital adequacy targets are met.

Treasury Department

The Treasury department monitors compliance with the Group’s liquidity, currency and cash
flow policies, including that described under Financing Activities above.

Market Risk Management Department

The Market Risk Management department measures, monitors and controls market risk and
ensures compliance with the Group’s market risk appetite. This department is completely
independent from the business divisions,

Credit Risk Management Department

The Credit Risk Management department measures, monitors and controls credit risk and
ensures compliance with the Group’s credit risk appetite. This department is completely
independent from the business divisions.

Operational Risk Management Department

The Operational Risk Management department is responsible for implementing the Operational
Risk Management policy and for providing challenges to the business divisions in their
management of operational risk. The department is completely independent from the business
divisions and from the Internal Audit department.

Finance Department

The Finance department monitors compliance with internally and externally set regulatory
limits and guidelines.

Prudential Risk Committee ("PRC")
The responsibility of the PRC is to provide oversight of, and guidance to the Board on:

e the risk profite of the Group;

s the risk appetite and tolerance and the future risk strategy for the Group;

+ the establishment and maintenance of an appropriate risk control framewaork;

o the adequacy and completeness of the Group’s systems and controls relating to its
risk control framework; and

* the identification, mitigation and/or elimination of current and future risks.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Risk Management Structure (continued)

Internal Audit

The Normura Group Internal Audit department has responsibility to examine, evaluate and
make recommendations on the appropriateness and the effectiveness of the internal control
of all busingss and operational activities.

The Global Head of Internal Audit has an independent reporting line to the Internal Controls
Committee, the Chairman of the NH Audit Committee and the Audit Mission Directors in
Tokyo.

In EMEA, the Head of Internal Audit has an independent reporting line to the Chairmen of
the Audit Committees of the Company and the Group. The EMEA Head of Internal Audit
also reports to the Global Head of Internal Audit and locally to the Chief Executive Cfficer
of the Company.

Internal Audit adopts a risk-based audit approach. A risk assessment is formally carried out
annually using a globally agreed methodology and, where necessary, this is updated
throughout the year as a result of continuous monitoring, on completion of audits and in
response to internal or external events or incidents. The outcome of the Internal Audit risk
assessment is used as a basis for delermining the annual Audit Plan. Any regulatory or other
required or expected audits are added to the Plan as well as any Management Requssts or
Special Projects initiated by Internal Audit, such as pre-implementation reviews, new business
reviews or one-off assignments in response to significant changes in the regulatory or
business environment.

Audit execution is also rigk-based. Key controls are identified and a varisty of techniques are
used to evaluate the adequacy of the design and the effectiveness of the controls, including
inquiry and observation, sample testing and, in some cases, substantive testing.

Internal Audit reports its findings and the agreed action pians, target dates and responsible
owners to the relevant Audit Committee(s), Senior Management and Line Management as
appropriate.

The status of outstanding action plans is reviewed regularly and reporled to Management
periodically. Internal Audit also performs validation work for action plans which Management
represents as having been completed.

Meonitoring, Reporting and Data Integrity

Consolidation, monitoring and reporting of risk is fundamental to the appropriate management
of risk. The aim of all risk Management Information ("MI") is to provide a basis for sound
decision-making, action and escalation as reguired. The Risk Management Division and the
Finance Division are responsible for producing regular risk MI, which reflects the position of
the Group relative to stated risk appetite. Risk Ml includes information from across the risk
classes defined in the risk management framework and reflect the use of the various risk
tools used to identify and assess those risks. The Risk Management Division and Finance
Division are responsible for implementing appropriate controls over data integrity for risk M.
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Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from fluctuation in the value of financial assets and
liabilities (including off-balance sheet items) due to fluctuations in market risk factors (interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, prices of securilies and others). The Group classifies exposuras
into either trading or non-trading portfolios. Trading portfolios are exposad to market risk and
managed and monitored on a dally basis on a Value-at-Risk {"VaR") methodociogy. Non-
trading positions are managed and mocnitored using other sensitivity analysis.

A. Market Risk - Trading (including financial assets and financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit and loss)

Effective management of market risk requires the ability to analyse a complex and constantly
changing global market environment, identify problematic trends and ensure that appropriate
action s taken in a timely manner. The Group uses a variety of complementary tools to
measure, model and aggregate market risk. The Group’s principal statistical measurement teol
tc assess and monitor market risk on an ongoing basis is VaR.

Within the Group, there is also a formal process for the allocation and management of
economic capital (Nomura Capital Allgcation Target or “NCAT", which is facilitated through
the capital allocation agenda discussed by the PRC. The PRC recommends any changes to
the Board, who must opine and approve, if appropriate. Day-to-day responsibility for the
NCAT calculation and the menitoring of risk limits, within the risk control framework, rests
with the independent Risk Management department, which reports to the Chief Risk Officer.

NCAT is used for performance evaluation and capital allocation, but not for capital adequacy.
In order to ensure capital adequacy, financial soundness is assessed under stressed
conditions, i.e. worst-case risk factor moves.

Vafue at Risk

VaR is a measure of the pctential loss in the value of the Group’s trading positions due to
adverse movements in markets over a defined time herizon with a specified confidence level.
Market risks that are incorporated in the VaR model include equity prices, interest rates,
credit, foreign exchange rates, and commodities with associated volatilities and correlations.

VaR Methodology and Assumptions

A single VaR model has been implemented globally in order to determine the total trading
VaR for NHI as well as for the Group. The VaR methedology uses historical simulation to
estimate potential profit or loss. Historical market moves are repeatedly applied to the
Group's current exposure, forming a distribution of simulated portfolio returns. From  this
distribution potential losses can be estimated al reguired confidence levels or probabilities.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market Risk {continued)
A. Market Risk - Trading (continued)

For internal risk management purposes, VaR is calculated at a 99% confidence level and
using a 1-day time horizon. For regulatory capital, the Group uses the same confidence level
but a 10-day time horizon calculated using actual 10-day historical market moves.

The VaR model uses a default historical time window of two years (520 business days). For
risk management and VaR backtesting, the Group uses a weighted VaR. For the calculation
of VaR, the probability weight assigned to each measure of estimated profit or loss in the
historical simulation scenarios depends on when it occurred. The older the observation, the
lower the weight.

In addition, the Group calculates other measures used to complement VaR under Basel 2.5
regufations. One of these, Stressed-VaR (“SvVaR™, is calibrated using a one-year window
during a period of financial stress. The one-year window is calibrated to be the one with the
largest SVaR, given the Group's current portfolio. The historical data used for SVaR is not
exponentially weighted. Al VaR and SVaR numbers are calculated within the same system
using equivalent model assumptions.

The VaR model uses time series for each individual underlying, whenever available. Whenever
a time series cannot be found for a specific underlying, the VaR model will follow a ‘proxy
logic' to map the exposure to an appropriate time series (for example, this would be the
case for an option on a recently issued stock). The level of proxying taking place in the VaR
model is carefully monitored through intermal risk management processes and there is a
continual effort to source new time series to use in the VaR calculation.

VaR Backtesting

The performance of the VaR model is constantly monitored to ensure that it remains fit for
purpose. The main approach for validating VaR is to compare 1-day trading losses with the
corresponding VaR estimate. Using a 99% VaR measure, 2 or 3 exceptions (i.e. loss is larger
than VaR) may be expected to occur each year. The VaR model is backtested at the Group
level as well as at a number of lower levels, and backtesting results are reviewed on a
monthly basis by the Risk Management Division.

1 day trading losses exceeded the 89% VaR estimate on two cccasions at the Group level
for the year ended 31 March 2014,

Lirnitations and Advantages of VaR

The main advantage of VaR as a risk measure is that it is able to aggregate risk from
different asset classes {in contrast with other risk measures sensitivities that cannct be easily
agagregated directly). The risk from different divisions of the Group can therefore easily be
compared and aggregated using VaR.

As a risk measure, however, VaR has certain limitations. One of the main disadvantages with
VaR is that it is a backward-looking risk measure. Using historical market moves to estimate
future profits or losses assumes that only events that have actually happened in the past are
relevant to analyse the risk of a portfolio.
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24.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market Risk {continued)
A. Market Risk — Trading (continued)
In addition, VaR only gives an estimate of the loss at a stated 9Sth percentile (i.e. in one out
of 100 days the loss wil be greater than 1-day VaR), but not what the magnitude of loss
could be whenaver the loss does exceed VaR.
VaR as a risk measure is most appropriate for liquid markets and may understate the
financial impact of severe events for which there is no historical precedent or where market
liguidity may not be reliable. In particular, historical correlations can break down in extreme
markets leading to unexpected relative market moves. This may make positions that off-set
each other in VaR modelling move in the same direction thus increase losses.
The Greup is aware of the limitation of the VaR model and uses VaR only as one
component of a diverse risk management process. Other metrics to supplement VaR include
stress testing ang sensitivity analysis,
The table below illustrates, by major risk category, the VaR during the financial years ended
31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 for NIP, which is the subsidiary with substantially all the
market risk in the Group. It shows the average, highest and lowest VaR for NIFP during the
financial vear.
Average
Average VaR Min VaR Max VaR VaR Min VaR
2014 2014 2014 2013 213
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Equity VaR 6,097 2127 16,443 9,028 2,322
Securitised Products VaR * - - 34 1,692 -
Credit VaR 5,885 3,812 10,682 29,079 6.691
Interest Rates VaR * 14,241 6,951 27,668 19,888 10,141
Inflaticn VaR * 3,682 1,365 11,086 1,309 531
FX VaR * 14,932 9,072 39,135 13,834 9,197
Commeodity vaR -~ 73 - 1,661 78 1
Diversification (20,765) (32,185)
Total » 25,145 14,421 36,938 42,623 17,443

Max VaR
2013
$'000
102,896
3,386
62,286
52,758
2,834
21,864
243

69,088

A Total vVaR figure shown for the Group is less than the arithmetic sum of the individual risk categories due to the effects of diversification
* A new VaR model was implemented on 1st Oclober 2012

The total average, minimum and maximum VaR values are shown over the full annual period.
A large part of the reduction in the total average VaR during the fiscal year ended 31 March
2014 was driven by the migration of certain positions to other entities.

In practice, the actual trading results will differ from the VaR calculation and, in particular, the
calculation does not provide a meaningful indication of profits and losses in stressed market
conditions.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market Risk (continued)

A. Market Risk — Trading {continued)

Incremental Risk Charge ("IRC”)

IRC is a measure of the potential loss from credit migration and default events on debt
securities over a one year time horizon and 99.9% confidence level. IRC is calculated by
Monte Carlo simulation of correlated migration and default events. P&L from migration is
computed by applying cradit spread shocks based on initial and final credit rating, adjusted
for basis risk by product, recovery and maturity. P&L from default is simulated including
stochastic recovery, correlated with overall default rates. A key determinant of IRC on a
position is the credit rating of the obligor, which is based on the firm’s IRB Internal Rating
system. |IRC scope covers all debt securities as approved by the PRA, with the exception of
trades covered under the Comprehensive Risk Measure as further described below,

Comprehensive Risk Measure (“CRM”)

CREBM is a measure of the potential loss from all forms of market and credit events on the
portfolio of credit correlation instruments over a one year time horizon and 9%8.9% confidence
ievel. CRM is calculated by Monte Carlo simulation of correlated market and credit shocks,
and full revaluation of the CRM porfolio applied to scenarios which drive severe losses. The
main market risk factors driving CRM are implied correlation, modelled using a transformed
Ornstein-Uhlenbeck process, and credit spreads, modslled using Geometric Brownian Motion,
Index single name basis risk is also included, as is correlation between market risk factors
and defaults. Defaults are simulated using the same credit risk model as in IRC, with credit
ratings btased on the firm's internal rating system. CBM scope covars Collateralised Debt
Obligations and First-To-Default positions, plus designated single-name and index hedges in
the portfolio of credit correlation instruments,
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24.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market Risk {continued)
A. Market Risk — Trading (continued)

Stress Testing

Stress testing is a process of assessing the stability or business continuity of the
Group. In order to assess the Group's capital adequacy and liquidity adequacy, stress
testing uses plausible scenarics at various levels of the hierarchy from Group level to
division or desk levels.

The Group conducts a rigorous programme of stress testing through a comprehensive suite
of top-down and bottom-up scenarios, covering different time horizons, severities, scope and
methodologies. Scenarios and their result are reviewed and presented on a regular basis to
senior management, who can then take appropriate actions.

At the Group level, stress testing is categorised either as sensitivity analysis, scenaric analysis,
firm wide stress testing or reverse stress testing.

s  Sensitivity analysis is used to quantify the impact of a market move in one or two
associated risk factors across all positions {e.q., equity prices or equity prices/equity
volatility) using a variety of defined market shocks in order 10 assess specific risks or
potential concentrations;

s Scenario analysis is used to quantify the impact of a specified event on the Group's
portfolio, combining simultaneous cross- asset market shocks;

¢ Firm-wide stress testing is applied consistently across risk classes, such as market,
credit, operational, business and liquidity risks. It is used to assess capital adequacy
under severe market scenarios; and

= Reverse stress testing is designed to identify a range of adverse circumstances which
coulg cause the Group's business plan to become unviable. Such tests would stress
the Group’s exposures or business models in an "extreme” fashion until the point of
capital failure, liquidity failure cor business closure.

The Group carries out stress tests in line with NHI's routine risk management process and
on an ad hoc basis in response to market events or concerns. Stress tests are run on legal
entity basis. Stress testing is regarded as an integral part of the Group’s risk management
governance and used as a tool for forward-looking risk management and decision-making.
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24.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market Risk {(continued)
B. Market Risk — Non-Trading

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future
cash flows or the fair values of financial instruments. The Beard has established limits on the
interest rate gaps for stipulated pericds. Positions are monitored on a daily basis and hedging
strategies are used to ensure positions are maintained within the established limits.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in foreign exchange rates. During the course of the Treasury department’s financing activities
there is often a need to swap surplus flows in one currency iNto ancther currency; a process
achieved using currency swap transactions. The Group is exposed to currency risk in respect
of certain foreign currency denominated loans. This exposure is managed on a portfolio
basis. The Board has set limits on positions by currency. Positions are monitored on a daily
basis and hedging strategies are used to ensure positions are maintained within established
limits. Hedge accounting is not applied.

In the cases of both interest rate and currency risk the Company does not believe, after
taking account of the portfolio management and hedging strategies in place, that there is a
material exposure to non-trading market risk. On this basis no sensitivity analysis is
presented.

Credit Risk
Credit Risk Managerment

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from an obligor or counterparty’s default, insclvency or
administrative  proceeding which results in the obligors failure to meet its contractual
obligations in accordance with agreed terms. This includes both on and off-balance sheet
exposures. It is also the risk of loss arising through a Credit Valuation Adjustment (“CVA”)
associated with deterioraticn in the creditworthiness of a counterparty.

Credit Risk Management Process

Credit Risk Management (“CRM") operates a credit risk control function within the Risk
Management Oivision, reporting to the Chief Risk Officer ("CRO”"). The process for managing
credit risk at the Group includes:

Evaluation of likelihood that a counterparty defaults on its payments and obligations;
Assignment of internal credit ratings to all active counterparties;

Approval of extensions of credit and establishment of credit limits;

Measurement, monitoring and management of the firm’s current and potential future
credit exposures,

Setting credit terms in legal documentation including margin terms;

s« Use of appropriate credit risk mitigants including netting, collateral and hedging.
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Credit Risk (Continued)
Credit Limits and Risk Measures

Internal ratings form an integral part in the assignment of credit limits to counterparties. The
Group’s credit iimit framework is designed to ensure that the Group takes appropriate credit
risk in a manner that is consistent with its risk appetite. Global Credit policies define the
delegated authority matrices that establish the maximum aggregated limit amounts and tenors
that may be set for any single counterparty group based on their internal rating.

The Group’s main type of counterparty credit risk exposures arise from derivatives
fransactions or securities financing transactions. Credit exposures against counterparties are
managed by means of setling credit limits based upon credit analysis of individual
counterparty. Credit risk is managed daily through the monitoring of credit exposure against
approved credit limits and the ongoing monitoring of the creditworthiness of the Group's
counterparties.

Risk Mitigation

The Group utiises financial instruments, agresments and practices to assist in  the
management of credit risk. The Group enters into legal agreements, such as the International
Swap and Derivatives Association, Inc ("ISDA") agreements or equivalent (referred to as
“Master Netting Agreements”), with many of its counterparties. Master Netting Agreements
allow netting of receivables and payables and reduce losses potentially incurred as a result of
a counterparty default. Further reduction in credit risk is achieved through entering into
colateral agreements that allow the Group to obtain collateral from counterparties sither
upfront or contingent on exposure levels, changes in credit rating or other factors.

Wrong-Way risk

Wrong Way Risk ("WWR”) occurs when exposure to a counterparty is highly correlated with
the deterioration of creditworthiness of that counterparty. The Group has established global
policiss that govern the management of any WWR exposures, Stress testing is used to
support the assessment of any WWR embedded within existing portfolios and adjustments
are made to credit exposures and regulatory capital, as appropriate.

WWR analysis is performed by the Risk Management Division and presented monthly at the
PRC. The analysis is provided to assist the business and senior management in determining
whether the level of wrong way risk is a concern and action should be taken to reduce it.

Credit Risk Exposure

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is disclosed below,
based on the carrving amount of the financial assets the Group believes is subject to credit
risk, without taking account of any collateral held or any other credit enhancements. Certain
off balance sheet instruments which expose the Group to a risk of loss due to default by the
parties underlying these contracts are also disclosed. Collateral is held on financial assets held
for trading, financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss, collateral paid for
securities purchased under agreemants to resell and coltateral paid for securities borrowed.
The exercise of collateral will lead to a significant reduction in the potential loss in the value
of the corresponding financial asset in the event of a counterparty or issuer faling to perform
its contractual commitment,

82



NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC

NOMAURA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

24.
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Credit Risk (Continued)
Credit Risk Exposure {continued)

Avazilahle-for-sale investments
Financial assets held for trading®
Financial assets designated at
fair value through profit and loss
Collateral paid for securities
purchased under agreements to
resell

Collateral paid for securities
borrowed

Trade debtors

Other debtors

Investments — time deposits
Cash at bank and in hand

Other commitments

Total exposure to credit risk

"Further analysis can be found in Note 12 on page 51

Maximum Maximum
Exposure to Exposure to
Credit Risk Credit Risk
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

8,216 2,073
282,201,987 220,511,141
17,804,491 23,809,450
128,427,301 138,112,583
18,523,560 18,251,621
3,124,992 2,521,198
11,882,745 13,388,027
2,489,201 2,454 176
4,136,510 6,638,737
466,699,003 423,689,008
2,065,991 3,170,244
469,564,094 426,859,250

Other credit enhancements include netling agreements which provide protection to reduce
losses in the event of a counterparty’s default and, in some cases offset the Group's
exposure with the same counterparty, which provide a more meaningful presentation of
balance sheet credit exposure. Cther credit enhancements are also credit derivatives and
other financial guarantee products which are used to hedge the Group’s exposure to credit

risk.

The credit quality of financial assets and off balance sheet commitments which are subject to
credit risk, that are neither past due nor impaired, is summarised below. The credit ratings
are determined by the Group's internally determined public rating agency eguivalents.
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Credit Risk (Continued)

Credit Risk Exposure {continued)

Maximum Maximum
Expaosure to Exposure to
Credit Risk Credit Risk
2014 2013
$000 $°000
Credit Rating

AAA 14,414,409 13,671,416
AA 49,812,856 35,892,111
A 103,628,500 98,214,606
BRBB 222,924,743 203,903,915
Non-Investment grade 58,601,269 54,896,386
Unrated 17,217,236 17,010,572

Total exposure to credit risk by
credit rating 466,598,003 423,689,006

The unrated balance represents the pool of counterparties which individually do not generate
material credit risk for the Group and which do not reguire rating under the Group's credit
management policies. This pool is highly diversified, subject to limits, and monitored on a
regular basis.

Included in the non-investment grade exposure is the fair value of various credit derivative
contracts with monoline insurers. These positions were entered into by the structured credit
trading business of Global Markets in Europe and are classified as financial assets held for
trading. The Group is currently negotiating with the insurers to settle the outstancing
amounts.,

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Concentrations of credit risk may arise from the Group's normal operation in derivative
instruments, trading, securities financing transactions and underwriting activities, anc may be
impacted by changes in political or economic factors. The Group's significant single
concentrations of credit risk are typically with investment-grade credit institutions in the US
and Europe and benefit from credit risk mitigation such as bilateral collateral agreements.

The Group is exposed to significant counterparty credit risk from other Nomura Group
undertakings. The maximum credit exposure to other Nomura Group undertakings s $167
billion {2013: $163 bilion) and is rated using the Nomura Group's credit rating of BBB (2013:
‘BBB") as below.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit Risk (Continued)

Amounts past due but ncot impaired

Amounts which are past due but not impaired are those amounis which the Group believes
are past due but stil recoverable or which are sufficiently collateralised such that the fair
value of the collateral pledged is sufficient to offset the amount of the cutstanding obiigation.

An ageing analysis of amounts past due but not impaired is provided in the table below:

Amounts past due but not impaired
Less than 91-180 181 daysto Morethan1 Total past due but

91 days days 1 year year not impaired

2014 2014 2014 2014 2014

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000

Other debtors 1,123,853 - - - 1,123,953
Total 1,123,053 - - - 1,123,853

Amounts past due but not impaired
Less than 91-180 181 daysto Morethan1 Total past due but

91 days days 1 year year not impaired

2013 2013 2013 2013 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Other debtors 789,255 117 - - 789,373
Total 789,256 117 . . 789,373

Impaired financial assets

The Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired
at each balance sheet date. An impairment loss is incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred afier the initial
recognition of the asset; the loss event has an impact on estimated future cash flows, after
taking into account any collateral held; and if the impact of that loss can be reliably
estimated.

The amount charged to profit and loss for assets subject to impairment losses during the
period is $nil {2013 $nil).

As at 31 March 2014 the cumulative impairment loss on available-for-sale investments was
$nil (2013: $nil).
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Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk Management

The Group defines liquidity risk as the potential inability to meet financial obligations as they
become due. This risk could arise from various scenarios and could be due both to Nomura-
specific and market-wide events. Liquidity risk management policy is based on the board
approved liquidity risk appetite. The Group's primary objective for liquidity risk management is
to ensure continuous liquidity across market cycles and periods of market stress, and to
ensure that all funding requirements and unsecured debt obligations that fall due within
Board-established survival horizons can be met without any reliance on additional unsecured
funding or forced liquidation of assets.

The firm's Maximum Cumulative Qutflow ("MCO") model guantifies the amount of liquidity
required to sunvive the approved stress scenarics, the Group manages liquidity risk on a self-
sufficiency basis and controls liquidity usage via an unsecured funding limit framework. To
ensure a readily available source of liquidity to meet the modelled liquidity requirements, the
Group maintain a liquidity portiolio in the form of highly liquid, unencumbered securities that
may be sold or pledged to provide liquidity, called "The Liguidity Pool”.

The Group as a UK regulated entity is fully compliant with the UK Prudential Regulation
Authority (“PRA") prescribed liquidity requirements.
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Liquidity Risk (continued)

Contractiual Maturity Table

The table below shows the Group's financial liabilities by contractual maturity remaining, taking
into account early redempticn features. Derivative contracts and other financial instruments
contained within the Group's trading portfolio and other instruments containing embedded
derivatives {including structured note issuances and other financial liabilities designated at fair
value) are presented at their fair values. All other amounts represent undiscounted cash flows
payable by the Group arising from its financial liabilities. Perpetual cashflows are shown for a
period of ten vyears. Derivatives are disclosed at fair value on demand with the exception of
gross settled derivatives, which are shown by contractual maiurity remaining.  Financial
liabilities designated at fair value are disclosed based on their earliest redemption date. This
presentation is considered to refiect the ligquidity risk arising from the Group’s financial

liabilities and is consistent with how this risk is managed by the Group,

On demand <lyear 1-5vyears Later than 5 Total
years
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
$'000 $000 $000 $’000 $'000
Financia! fiabilities
held-for-trading 248,665,919 7,025,893 1,778,388 102,031 257,572,229
Financial liabilities
designated at fair
value 730,756 4,641,070 5,197,422 3,805,262 14,264,510
Collateral received for
securities sold under
agreements to
repurchase 25,457,009 102,612,571 279,668 - 128,349,248
Collaterai received for
securities loaned 14,350,606 - - - 14,350,606
Loans and overdrafts - 6,116,444 815,874 - £,932,318
Trade creditors 4,003,087 - - - 4,003,087
Deposits received from
Banking customers 3,722,623 - - - 3,722,823
Detyt securities in
issue - 23,100 88,166 - 111,266
QOther creditors
26,076,738 123,745 - - 26,200,483
Subordinated debt
- - - 5,375,000 6,375,000
323,006,738 120,542,823 8,158,516 10,172,293 461,881,370
Other commitments 435,351 1,414,488 1,113425 2,983,265
Standby letters of
credit and other
guarantecs - - 2,727 2,727
- 435,351 1,414,488 1,116,152 2,965,992
Total exposure to
liquidity risk 323,006,738 120,978,174 8,574,004 11,288,445 464,847,362
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED})

Liquidity Risk {continued)

Contractual Maturity Table {continued)

Financial liahilities
held-for-trading
Financial habilities
designated at fair
value

Collateral received
for securities sold
under agreements to
repurchase
Collateral received
for securities loaned

Loans and overdrafts

Trade creditors

Deposits received
from Banking
customers

Debt securities in
issue

Other craditors

Subordinated debt

Other commitments
Standby letters of
credit and other
guarantees

Total exposure tc
liquidity risk

NOMURA

On demand <lyear 1-Syears Laterthanb Total
years

2013 2013 2013 2013 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

200,307,392 8,354,732 1,810,240 95,914 210,668,278

1,453,264 8,410,883 3,742,368 3,363,744 16,970,259

5,230,564 122,435,405 1,208,840 - 128,874,809

9,803,292 - - - 9,903,292

8,107,555 2,146,988 - 10,254,543

4,298,014 - - - 4,298,014

6,334,594 - - 6,334,594

- 20,059 36,215 - 56,273

26,470,687 37,196 - - 26,507,883

- - 200,000 5,075,000 5,275,000

253,997,807 147,365,830 9,144,651 8,634,668 419,042,845

- 456,928 1,751,440 957,408 3,185,775

- - 4,489 4,469

- 456,928 1,751,440 961,875 3,170,244

253,997,807 147,822,758 10,896,001 9,496,533 422,213,189
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liquidity Risk {(continued)

Contractual Maturity Table (continued)

The table below shows the maturity profie of the Group's financial assets. The analysis into
maturity groupings is based on the remaining period to the contractual maturity date or, if
earlier, the expected date the assets will be realised.

Less than Later
On demand 30 days 31-90 91days—-1 1-5vears thanh
days year gars Total

2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Cash at bank
and in nand 4,138,510 - - - - 4,136,510
Available-for-sale
Investments 8,216 - - - - ~ 8,216
Financial assets
held for trading 282,201,987 - - - - - 282,201,887
Financial assets
designated at fair
value 17,804,491 - - - - - 17,804,491
Collateral paid
for securities
purchased under
agreement to
resell 31,932,243 73,763,878 12,462,410 6,476,341 1,802,429 - 126,427,301
Collateral paid
for securities
borrowed 18,523,560 - - - - - 18,623,580
Other debtors 13,861,825 1,124,331 - - 21,681 - 15,007,737
[Investments -
time deposits 2,489,201 - - - - - 2,489,201
Total exposure 1o
liquidity risk 370,958,033 74,878,209 12,462,410 6,476,341 1,824,010 - 466,599,003
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Liguidity Risk {continued)

Contractual Maturity Table {continued)

Cash at bank
and in hand
Available-for-
sale
Investments
Financial
assets held
for trading
Financial
assets
designated at
fair value
Collateral paid
for securities
purchased
under
agreement to
resell
Collateral paid
for securities
horrowed

Other debtors
Investments -
time deposits
Total
exposure 1o
liquidity risk

Less than Later

On 30 days 31-90 91 days 1-5 thanb
demand days =1 year ears years Total
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
6,638,737 - - - 6,638,737
2,073 - - - - 2,073
220,511,141 - - - - - 220,511,141
23,809,450 - - - 23,809,450
3,182,948 84,258,641 46,207,824 817,602 3,645,568 - 138,112,683
16,251,621 - - - - 16,251,621
14,837,165 789,256 - - 282,804 - 156,909,225
2,454,176 - - - - 2,454 176
287 687,311 85,047,897 46,207,824 817,602 3,928,372 - 423,689,006
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Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, and systems or from external events. It exciudes strategic risk {the risk of loss as a
result of poor strategic business decisions), but includes the risk of breach of legal and
regulatory requirements, and the risk of damage to NHI's reputation if caused by an
operational risk. The Group uses the NHI Operational Risk Management (“ORM”) framework
for the management of the Group’s operational risk.

The Three Lines of Defence

The Group adopis the industry standard “Three Lines of Defence” for the management of
operational risk, comprising:

e 1st Line of Defence: The business which owns and manages its risks.

» 2nd Line of Defence: The ORM function, which defines and co-crdinates the Group’s
operational risk strategy and framework and provides challenge to the 1st Line of
Defence.

e 3rd Line of Defence: Internal and External Audit, who provide independent assurance.

The Group's ORM framework is set out below:
Infrastructure of the framework
e Policy framework: Sets standards for managing operational risk and details how to
monitor adherence to these standards.
s Training and awareness: Action taken by ORM to improve business understanding of
operationai risk.

Products and Services

Risk and Control Self Assessment (*RCSA”): The process used by business units to
identify and assess the operaticnal risks to which they are exposed, the controls in
place to mitigate risks, and acticn plans to further reduce risk.

¢ Scenario Analysis: Process to identify and assess high impact, low prebability ‘tail
avents’.

s Event Repctting: Process to obtain information on and learn from actual events
impacting the Group and relevant exiernal events. A key step is to identify
appropriate action plans to prevent or mitigate future occurrence of events.

* Key Risk Indicators ("KRI"), Metrics which allow monitoring of certain key operational

risks and trigger appropriate responses as thresholds are breached.

Outputs

» Analysis and reporting: A key aspect of ORM's role is to analyse, report, and
challenge cperational risk information provided by business units, and work with
business units to develop action plans to mitigate risks.

e (Cperational risk capital calculation: Calculate operational risk capital for regulatory
reporting purposes and allocate to business units to improve the efficiency on profit
versus risks.
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24.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {(CONTINUED)
Model Risk

Model risk is the risk arising from model errors or incorrect or inappropriate model
application, which can lead to financial loss, poor business and strategic decision making,
restatement of external and internal reports, regulatory penalties and damage to the Group's
reputation.

Errors can occur at any point from model assumptions through to implementation. In addition,
the quality of model outputs depends on the quality of model parameters and any input data.
Even a fundamentally sound model producing accurate outputs consistent with the design
objective of the model may exhibit high model risk if it is misapplied or misused.

NHI has documented policies In place, which define the process and validation procedures
required in order to implement new or amend existing valuation and risk models. The Group
operates in accordance with these NHI global policies. Before models are put into official use,
the Model Validation Group ("MVG") s responsible for  validating their integrity and
comprehensiveness independently from those who design and build them. All models are also
subject to an annual re-approval process by MVG to ensure they remain suitable. For
changes with an impact above certain materiality thresholds, model approval is required.

Business Risk

Business risk is the risk of failure of revenues to cover costs due to a deterioration in the
earnings environment o a deterioration in the efficiency or effectiveness of the Group’s
business operations. Managing business risk is the responsibility of the Group's Executive
Managing Directors and Senior Managing Directors.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

All financial instruments held or issued for trading purposes are carried in the financial
statements at fair value which is determined using market values, option pricing models or by
discounting expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates.

The carrying value of financial instruments not measured at fair value s a reasonable
approximation of fair value for the majority of these holdings due to the short-term nature of
these financial assets and liabilities.

Financial instruments valued using unobservable market data

Certain financial assets and liabilities are valued using valuation techniques which rely on
parameters which are not cbservable in the market due to an absence of equivalent, current,
market transactions or observable market data.

These valuation techniques are based on assumptions. As a result, the fair value calculated
using these valuation techniguss will change if the underlying assumptions change. The
potential impact of using reasonably possibie alternative assumptions to valus these financial
instruments at the balance shest date is plus and/or minus $57,856,018 (2013: $46,142,867).
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Financial instruments valued using unobservable market data (continued)

Where the use of valuation techniques with significant unobservable parameters generates a
gain or loss at inception, this is deferred over the life of the coniract, until the parameters

become observable or the instrument is terminated. Changes in fair value after inception are
recognised in the profit and loss account. The total fair value change recognised in profit or
loss attributable to these financial instruments at balance sheet date is $111,716,062 (2013

$20,176,346),

The amounts not recognised during the year relating to the difference between the transaction
price and the fair value determined using a valuation technique with unobservable parameters

is shown in the table below:

As at 1 April

New transactions
Redemptions and terminations

Ag at 31 March

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
14,985 26,381
7,536 9,689
(17,664) (21,085)
4,857 14,985

Gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities held or issued for trading:

The net gain/ {loss) from trading in financial assets and financial liabilities shown in the

profit and loss account includes the following:

Bond and equity derivatives
Convertible bonds

Equities

Warrants

Government bonds

Bank and corporate bonds
Interest rate derivatives
Currency derivatives

Credit derivatives

2014 2013
$°000 $'000
(1,320,476) (954,790)
(861,686) (300,750)
4,698,365 (171,977)
115,513 353,417
406,292 (2,018,781)
362,475 228,120
(50,053) (670,619)
1,255,614 1,146,912
(3,674,521) 3,445,405
931,523 1,056,937

The information provided in the table above is shown on a pure product split basis, with no
matching of the gains and losses on derivative contracts being offset against those on the
underlying position. A significant amount of trading takes place on a strategy basis across a

range of instruments and is managed accordingly.

23



NOMNURA

NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED)

25. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions have been applied in determining the fair values of
financial instruments:

a) The fair value of loans and receivables and other liabilities due within 12 months
are assumed to approximate to their carrying values.

b) Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are measured at fair value by
reference to quoted market prices when available. If gquoted market prices are
not available, then fair values are estimated using a valuation modsl.

¢) Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss and
derivatives are measured at fair value by reference to quoted market prices when
available. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated
using a valuation model. Such models are based wherever possible on
assumptions supported by observaple market prices or rates. These valuation
techniques are based on assumptions. As a result, the fair value calculated using
these valuation techniques will change if the underlying assumptions change.

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 - quoted prices in active markets for the same instrument {i.e. without modification ©
repackaging).

Level 2 - quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities or other valuation
techniques for which ali significant inputs are based on observable market data.

Level 3 - valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable
market data.

The fllowing table presents information about the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at fair value at 31 March 2014 within the fair value hierarchy, tased on
the transparency of inputs into the valuation techniques used by the Group to determine
such fair values. Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified in their entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the financial
mstrument,
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25. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {(CONTINUED)

Financial assets

Financial assets held for trading:
- Equities
- Debt securities and loans
- Derivatives

Designated at Fair value

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading:
- Equities
- Debt securities and Icans
- Derivatives

Designated at Fair value

2014 2014 2014 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$°000 $°000 $'000 $°000
14,125,658 778,832 273,285 15,177,775
35,045,068 19,272,534 306,335 54,623,937
2,270,663 207,289,697 2848131 212,408,491
1,326,042 16,264,736 213,713 17,804,491
52,767,431 243,605,799 3,641,464 300,014,694
2014 2014 2014 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
$'000 $'000 $000 $000
(4,698,123) (205,482) {471) (4,904,076)
{256,410,397) (12,770,016) - (38,180,413)
(2,809,460) (208,846,348) (2,831,932) (214,487,740)
(748499 (12,963,040) (552,971 {14,264,510)
(33,666,479) (234,784,886) (3,385,374) (271,836,739
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25.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

2013 2013 2013 2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000 $000 $000 $'000
Financial assets
Financial assets held for
trading:
- Equities 4,532,543 2,322,112 232,812 7,087,467
- Debt securities and loans 18,194,959 15,491,451 220,698 33,916,108
- Derivatives 2,813,033 171,449,447 5,247 160 179,500,640
Designated at fair value 495,269 23,312,560 1,621 23,808,450
26,035,804 212,575,570 5,711,291 244,322,665
2013 2013 2013 2013
Level 1 Level 2 lLevel 3 Total
$'000 $7000 $'000 $'000
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities held for
trading:
- Equities (7,471,387) (924,991) (2,788) (8,399,166)
- Debt securities and loans (13,680,013 (9,945,280) - (23,625,293}
- Derivatives (3,494,311) (169,884,583) (5,164,919) {178,543,813)
Designated at fair value {857,036) {(16,105,282) ~(7,941) {16,270,259)
(25,502,747} (196,860,136) (5,175,648) {227,538,5631)

Level 3 financial assets and financial liabilities

Level 3 financial assets and financial liabilities include instruments whose valuations are
significantly dependent on parameters which are unobservable in the market. Financial
instruments are categorised in accordance with their lowest level significant input. As a
result, a derivative valued using a combination of level 1, level 2 and level 3 parameters
would be classified in level 3 in its entirety, if its value is significantly affected by at least
one significant unobservable parameter.

These financial instruments are often hedged with instruments within level 1 or level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy and the gains or losses below do not reflect the offsetting gains or
losses for these hedging instruments. Level 3 instruments are alse measured using both
cbservable and uncbservable inputs. Fair value changes presented below, therefore, reflect
realised and unrealised gains and losses resulting from movements in both observable and
unobservable parameters.
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25. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following table presents information about financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value on a recurring basis for which the Group has utilised level 3 inputs to determine fair
value. (in ‘$000)

Financial
Assets

Financial assets
held for trading

- Equities

- Debt
secunties
and loans

- Derivatives

Designated at
fair value

Financial
liabilities
Financial
liabilities
held for
trading

- Equities

- Debt

securities
and loans

- Derivatives

- Designated at
fair value

Total gains and losses

At 1 April Total Total Purchases Sales Settlements Net At 31 Unrealised
2013 gains gains transfers March Total
(losses) {losses) in/ (out 2014 gains
in P&L in of) level {losses) in
equity 3 P&L
232,812 109,102 11,324 (103,081) - 23,128 273,285 67,377
229,698 3,179 232,320 (192,678} 33,816 306,335 16,097
5,247,160 1.342,012 - (3,214,251} (626,790} 2,848,131 1,488,233
123,867 (9,142) 98,988 - - - 213,713 (9,256)
5,833,637 1,445,151 98,988 243,644 (295,759 (3.214,251)  {469,846) 3.641.464 1,562,451
At 1 April Total Total Purchases Sales Settlements Net At31  Unrealised
2013 gains gains transfers March Total
(losses) in  (losses) in/ (out 2014 gains
P&L in of) level {losses} in
equity 3 P&L
{(2,788) (470) {1,821) 5,026 {418) (471) (442)
(5,287,158) (1,376,524) - - 3,074,649 757,102 (2,831,932 (1,182,130}
(7,942 64,687 - (11,283} 288,719 {B867,052) (652,97 1) 332,663
(6,297,889  (1.312,407) {13,104) 273,745 3,074,649 (110,368} (3.385,374) (829,909)

profit/(loss)’ in the profit and loss account.
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25. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED}

Transfers between level 1 and 2

The following table shows transfers between level 1 and level 2 of the fair valug hierarchy
for financial assets and liabilities which are recorded at fair value:

Financial assets

Financial assets held for trading
- Equities
- Debt securities and loans

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilties held for trading
- Equities
- Debt securities and loans

Financial assets

Financial assets held for trading
- Equities
- Debt securities and loans

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading
- Equities
- Debt securities and loans
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Transfers from
level 1 to level 2

Transfers from
level 2 to level 1

2014 2014
$'000 $’000
131,897 1,229,704
29,810 8,947
161,707 1,238,651

Transfers from

Transfers from

level 1 to level 2

level 2 to level 1

2014 2014
$'000 $'000
(107,263) (580,322)
(2,733) -
(109,096) (580,322)

Transfers from
level 1 to level 2

Transfers from
level 2 to level 1

2013 2013

$'000 $'000

43,263 2,729,202
117,156 13,553
160,419 2,742,755
[ransfers from Transfers from
level 1 to level 2 level 2 to level 1
2013 2013

$'000 $°000

{22,031} (2,803,796)
(12,898) -
(34,929) {2,803,736)
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26. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICY

The objectives of the Group’s capftal management policies are to ensure that the Group,
together with NCM, a fellow subsidiary undertaking of the Nomura Group, complies with
externally imposed capital reguirements and o0 seek 1o enhance shareholder value by
capturing business opportunities as they develop. To achieve these goals, sufficient capital is
maintained to support the Group's business and to withstand losses due 1o extreme market
movements.

The Group reviews the appropriate level of capital sufficiency, with senior management
responsible for implementing and enforcing capital policies. The determination of balance sheet
size and level of capital take into consideration regulatory requirements, economic risks
inherent in its business and maintenance of a debt rating appropriate t¢ a global financial
instifution. The allecation of available capital resource across the business is then based upon
factors such as return on capital and regulatory reguirements.

The Company is unregulated on a standalone basis.

The Group is subject to and has complied with the regulatory requirements imposed by the
PRA under the CRD IV framework.

No changes were made in the objectives, pclicies or processes for managing capital during
the year.

Regulatory Capital

Regulatory guidelines developed by the Baset Committee and European Union Directives, as
implemented by the PRA for superviscry purposes define two ‘Tiers’ of capital resources,
previously three. Tier 1 capital is the highest tier and consists of, inter alia, ordinary share
capital, reserves and retained earnings. Tier 2 includes perpetual and long-term subordinated
debt. Tiers 1 and 2 capital can e used to support both trading and non-trading activity, Tier
3 capital is no longer sligible following the implementation of CRD IV from 2 January 2014,
and instead is classified as Tier 2 capital.  As at 31 March 2013 it comprised short-term
subordinated debt and current vear trading book profits/{losses). The capital resources table
below includes figures for both the Group and NCM.

2014 2013

$'000 $°000
Tier 1 capital 4 439,479 4,587,145
Tier 2 capital 6,375,000 3,888,985
Tier 1 & 2 capital 10,814,479 8,476,130
DCeductions from total of Tier 1 & 2 capital - (74,714)
Tier 3 capital - 2,486,015
Total capital resources 10,814,479 10,887,431
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27. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2014 the Group was committed to making the following payments during the
next year in respect of non-cancellable operating leases:

2014 2013
Buildings Other Buildings Other
Operating leases which expire: $'000 $'000 $’'000 $'000
Within one year 8,783 3,574 10,423 456
Within two to five years 31,525 4,267 31,526 1,238
Aiter five years 69,816 - 88,427 -
110,124 7,841 130,378 1,695

28. EMPLOYEES

The average number of perscns employed by the Group during the year was 2,999 (2013
2,972). The breakdown by location of employees was as follows:

Location Average Employees

2014 2013
United Kingdom 2,441 2,545
Bahrain 2 3
Russia - 3
Germany 51 67
France 79 a7
Switzeriand 21 43
[taly 30 37
Foland - 2
Qatar 1 1
Turkey 1 1
Nethertands 8 11
Austria - 2
Luxembourg 297 81
Spain 36 36
UAE 29 33
Sweden 3 7
Finland - 3

2,998 2,972

The Company has no employees (2013: nily.
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29.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Salaries, allowances and taxable benefits
Group contributions to pensions
Bonuses

Compensation for loss of office

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
5,351 6,046
129 123
3,742 3,182
- 3,350
9,222 12,701

The Directors {(with the exception of Devesh Mehta) of the Group are also the Directors of the

Group's main subsidiary, NIP. They were remunerated by NIP.

The highest paid Director received emoluments of $2,360,259 (2013: $1,414,220) and pension

contributions of $34,111 (2013: $nil).
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The ultimate heclding company, NHI, has issued two types of share option schemes — SAR
plan A and SAR plan B

For both plans the share options have variable vesting periods during which the options may
not be exercised.

The exercise price of stock option plan A will be determined by reference to the market price
of the ultimate holding company’s common stock at the time the cptions are granted, whilst
that of stock option plan B will be 1¥ per share.

For both stock option plans, these stock options are exercisable during a certain period from
the vesting date (five vears at maximum from the vesting date), which is to be decided by
the ultimate holding company's Executive Management Board.

The following table for stock option plan A lists the inputs to the model used for the year
ended 31 March 2014;

Date of grant Historical Risk-free = Expected life Share Price
of share Dividend volatility interest of cptions at Grant
options yield rate Date

% % % Years ¥

14-Jul-06 3.08 36.48 1.68 7 2,020
01-Aug-07 3.04 33.85 1.65 7 2,210
05-Aug-08 3.78 32,73 1.43 7 1,493

The following table for stock option plan A lists the inputs to the model used for the year
ended 31 March 2013:

Date of grant Historical Risk-free Expected life  Share Price
of share Dividend volatility interest of options at Grant
options vield rate Date

% % % Years ¥
25-Jul-05 3.30 42.44 0.87 7 1,335
14-Jul-08 3.08 36.48 1.68 7 2,020
01-Aug-07 3.04 33.85 1.65 7 2,210
05-Aug-08 3,78 32,73 1.43 7 1,493

Under stock option plan B, the share price as at the grant date has been used as an
estimate for the fair value at grant date.

For both stock option plans it has been assumed that all options will vest given that there is
insignificant historical experience available to provide a reliable estimate.

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year was $105,664,000
{2013: $113,626,000).
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
NSU and CSU Awards

NSUs and CSUs are cash-settled awards linked to the price of NHI's common stock which
have graded vesting over three years from grant date. NSUs vest annually over three years
while CSUs vest quarterly over three years. NSUs are lied to the value of the ulimate
holding company’s common stock cn the Tokyo Stock Exchange (JP: 8804) and are settled
in cash rather than NHI's common stock. CSUs are similar to NSUs but exposure of the
employee to movements in the price of NHI's common stock is subject to a cap and floor.
The fair value of NSUs and C3SUs are determined using the average closing NRI share price
over the five trading days up to and including the vesting date.

For NSU and CSU awards the expense recognised for employee services received during the
year was $176,422,058 (2013: $175,851,401),

Other Awards

In addition to the stock-based compensation awards described above, Nomura also grants
NiUs to certain senior management and employees, NIiUs are cash-settled awards linked 0 a
world stock index quoted by Morgan Stanley Capital International which have graded vesting
over three years from grant date. NIJs vest quarterly over three years. The fair value of NIUs
is determined using the average closing price of the Index during the five trading days up to
and including the vesting date.

For NIU awards the expense recognised for employee services received during the year was
$48,570,772 (2013: $41,510,384).

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise price of the following
groups of share options:

Share  Number of Share Options Weighted

Option average
Plan exercise
price
Qustanding at the beginning of the year A 240 232
B 649,473 1
NSU 16,979,217
csu 40,689,792
NIU 21,200,891
79,519,613
Granted during the year A - -
B 127,942 1
NSU 5,787,319
Ccsu 12,278,595
NIU 5,944 669
24,138,525
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Share Number of Share Options Weighted

Option average
Plan exercise
price
¥
Forfeited during the year A . -
B (19,470) 1
NSU {372,403)
CSu {1,521,125)
NIV (1.020,421)
(2,933,419)
Exercised during the year A - -
B (277,123) 1

NSU  (11,807,337)
CSU  (19,409,324)
NIU (11,899,982)

(43,393,766)

Expired during the year A (150) -
B (28) 1
NSU -
CcSsu -
NIU -
{178)
Outstanding at the end of the year A 90 232
B 480,794 1
NSU 10,586,796
Ccsu 32,037,938
NIU 14,225 157
57,330,775
Exercisable at the end of the year A -
B - 1

104



NOMURA EUROPE HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2014 (CONTINUED
31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2014 there were capital commitments of $21,341,734 (2013: $17,763,127)
relating to assets in the course of construction.

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 8 from disclosing related party
transactions with other entities included in the group financial statements of Nomura Holdings
Inc, where 20% or more of both entities’ voting rights are controlled within the group.
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
ltalian Tax Dispute

COn 25 January 2008, NIP was served with a Tax Notice issued by the Tax Authorities in
Pescara, ltaly alleging breaches by NIP of the UK - ltaly Double Taxation Treaty of 1998. The
alleged breaches relate to payments to NIP of tax credits on dividends on ltalian shares. The
Tax Notice not only denies certain payments to which NIP claims to be entitled but is aiso
seeking reimbursement of €33.8 million, plus interest, already refunded. Cn 25 March 2008,
NIP lodged an appeal against the Tax Notice rejecting the ltalan Tax Authorities' demands for
reimbursement and advancing NIF's claim for further refunds.

The matter went to a hearing in March 2002 and in November 2008 a decision was issued
by the First Instance Pescara Tax Court in favour of the [talian Tax Authorities. NIP lodged
an appeal of this decision and in March 2012 a second decision was issued by the Second
Instance Pescara Tax Court in favour of the ltalian Tax Authorities. As is allowed under
ltalian tax procedure, in September 2012 NIP received a demand for payment from the Italian
Tax Authorities in the amount of €37.5 milion which comprised the original refunded amount,
interest and collection fees. Payment of this amount was made on 26 October 2012
Payment does not undermine NIF's arguments in the dispute and NIP intends to continue to
vigorously challenge the second decision and a further appeal to the Supreme Court in Rome
was filed on 8 July 2013 in order to seek full reimbursement of this amount plus further
interest. Ultimately NIP expects that its appeal will prevail. The specified amount paid is NIP's
current estimate of the maximum reasonably possible loss from this matter.

Region of Calabria

The Region of Calabria (the "Region”} commenced civil proceedings against a number of
financial services firms including NIP in the local Calabrian court. The Region’s claim against
NIP related to derivative transactions entered into by the Region and purported to be for the
sum of €32 milion. NIP vigorously defended these proceedings, and this dispute was
resolved and settled between the parties on 6 March 2014,
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fairfield Funds

NIP is a defendant in two actions seeking recovery of payments allegedly made to NIP by
Fairfield Sentry Lid. and Fairfield Sigma Ltd. {collectively, the “Fairfield Funds”). The Fairfield
Funds, now in liguidation, were feeder funds to Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC
{"BLMIS"). BLMIS is itself now in liguidation in the US pursuant to the Securities Investor
Protection Act. The first claim was brought by the liquidators of the Fairfield Funds. It was
fled on 5 October 2010 in the Supreme Court of the Staie of New York, but was
subseguently removed te the US District Court, which in turn referred it the US Bankruptcy
Court. It looks likely that the claim will be transferred back 1o the New York Supreme Court.
The clam is one of many simiar claims that have been brought against a number of
invesiors. The second claim was brought by the Trustee for the liguidation of BLMIS (the
"Madoff Trustee”). NIP was added as a defendant on 6 June 2012 when the Madoff Trustee
fled an amended complaint in the US Bankruptcy Court. The US District Court has decided
certain preliminary issues. The Trustee has appealed cne of those preliminary issue decisions
to the US Court of Appeals, and has sought leave from the Bankruptcy Court to amend his
complaint against NIP (and other defendants) in light of certain other preliminary issue
decisions. Again, this claim is one of many claims being brought against a range of investors,
Both claims are at a preliminary stage. The amount claimed in each case is approximately
US$35 million plus interest. NIP intends to vigorously contest the proceedings. NIP does not
believe that it will face the prospect of double recovery of the sums in question. The current
astimate of the maximum reasonably possible loss from this matter is US$35 million.

Harley Claim

On 6 Cctober 2011, the Madoff Trustee filed an adversary proceeding against NIP in the US
Bankruptcy Court for the recovery of redemption payments allegedly made by the Harley fund
to NIP. The basis of the claim is that the redemptions in question were and continue to be
“‘Customer Property” within the meaning of the Securities Investor Protection Act and are
therefore avoidable and recoverable under the U3 Bankruptcy Code and New York Debtor
and Creditor law. The Harley fund, now in liguidation, was a fesder fund to BLMIS. The claim
is for approximately US$21.5 milicn plus interest. The WS District Court has decicded certain
preliminary issues. The Trustee has appealed one of those preliminary issue decisions to the
US Court of Appeals, and has sought leave from the Bankruptcy Court to amend his
complaint against NIP {and other defendants) in light of certain other preliminary issue
decisions. NIP intends to vigorously contest the proceedings. The specified amount claimed
is the current estimate of the maximum reasonably possible loss from this matter.
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
Collateral dispute

On 1 March 2011, formal proceedings were commenced in the Commercial Court of the
Canton of Zurich (the “"Ceourt”) agairnst Targuin Umited (“Tarquin®), a special purpose company
established at the request of NIP, in which PT Bank Mutiara Tbk. (“Bank Wutiara") has
chalienged Tarquin's rights over USE155 million previously on deposit in a bank account held
with Dresdner Bank (Schweiz) (‘Dresdner”) over which Tarquin has a security interest pursuant
to a loan facility. These funds are now deposited with the Cantonal Bank of Zurich by order
of the Swiss Court, following a request by Dresdrner for the Court to decide who should
receive the funds. As part of this process the Swiss Court of Appeal determined that Bank
Mutiara had until 1 March 2011 to commence proceedings against Tarquin claiming the
monies. Bank Mutiara met this deadline. Tarquin disputes that Bank Mutiara has any
enforceable security interest over the funds and is seeking the release of the monies to its
order and will therefore vigorously defend the action which is ongcing. NIP cannot currently
estimate the maximum reasonably possible loss from this matter but telieves it is significantly
less than the amount of cash being claimed.

Legal proceedings relating to Banca Monte dei Paschi de Siena SpA (“MPS”)

In March 2013, Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena SpA ("MPS") issued a claim in the [talian
Courts against two former directors of MPS and NIP. MPS alleges that the former directors
improperly caused MPS to enter into certain structured financial transactions with NIP in 2009
{the "Transactions”) and alleges that NIP is jointly liable for the unlawful conduct of MPS's
former directors. MPS is claiming damages of not less than €700 millien. In July 2013 a
claim was also issued against the same former directors of MPS, and NIP, by the
shareholder group Fondazicne Monte dei Paschi di Siena ("FMPS”). The grounds of the FMPS
claim are similar to those on which the MPS claim is founded. The level of damages sought
by FMPS is not specified. NIP has fled and served its Defences to both the MPS and the
FMPS claims.

An investigation has alse been commenced by the Public Prosecutor's office in Siena, Italy,
into various allegations against MPS and certain of its former directors, including in relation to
the Transactions. Starting on 15 April 2013, the Public Prosecutor in Siena issued seizure
orders in relation to the Transactions seeking to seize the Transactions and approximately
€1.9 billion of assets said to be held or receivable in various accounts of NIP and Nomura
Bank international plc (“NBI") accounts in, or managed through, Raly and alleging that the
Transactions involved offences under [talian law. To date, these seizure orders have not been
validated by the Italian Courts. The Public Prosecutor lodged an appeal against the ltalian
Courts' decisions, which was heard at the Supreme Court in Rome on 25 March 2014, The
Supreme Court determined that the appeal should be denied in part, but that the case
should be sent pack to the lower court for further consideration in refation to one element of
the case. At a hearing on 17 September 2014 where the seizure order was to be
reconsidered, the Public Prosecutor withdrew their seizure order appeal. This means that the
seizure order proceedings in Siena have now concluded with no seizure order in place
against NIP or NBI. However, the investigation file has now been transferred to the Public
Prosecutor's Office in Milan which will continue the criminal investigation going forward. The
extent or scope of that investigation is not currently clear.
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Legal proceedings relating to Banca Monte dei Paschi de Siena SpA (“MPS”) (continued)

Additionally, NIP commenced a claim against MPS in the English Courts in March 2013. The
claim is for declaratory relief confirming that the Transactions remain valid and contractually
binding. MPS filed and served its Defence and Counterclaim to these proceedings in March
2014, NIF filed and served its Reply in June 2014, MPS filed and served a Rejoinder in
August 2014, and a Case Management Conference has been listed for November 2014, MPS
aleges in its Counterclaim that NIP is liable to make restitution of a net amount of
approximately €1.5 billion, and seeks declarations regarding the illegality and invalidity of the
Transactions.

NIP continues to vigorously defend its position in each of the aforementioned proceedings. It
is not possible for NIP to estimate the amount of reasonably possible loss in these
proceedings. Numerous legal and factual issues may need to be resolved, including through
potentially lengthy discovery and determination of important factual matters, and by addressing
novel or unsettled legal questions relevant to the proceedings in question, before the amount
of any potential liability can be reasonably estimated for these claims. NIP cannot predict if,
how, or when the claims wil be resolved or what any eventual settlement, fine, penalty or
cther relief may be, particularly since the clams are at an early stage in their development
and the claimants are seeking substantial damages.

German Claim

On 10 January 2014 NIP received a clam from a firm owned by the municipality of
Munich. The claim was served on NIP's branch office in Frankfurt. The claim relates to six
swap transactions. It is alleged that NIP breached its duties under {implied) advisory
agreements associated with the transactions, and failed to explain the structure of, and risks
associated with, the transactions. Approximately €1 milicn in damages is claimed and the
firm also asks that the court release it from al of its ohligations in relation to the
transactions. It states that the total amount in dispute is approximately €11 milion. NIF has
submitted a full defence to the claim, which will be heard in the Munich District Court, and
intends to vigorously contest the proceedings.

Region of Sicily

On 15 July 2014, NIP received, with nc advance notice, a seizure order dated 7 July 2014
from the Court in Palermo, Sicily (the “Court”) which has restricted receipt of a coupon
payment of €68.9 milion that was due from the Region of Sicily (“Sicily") to NIP in connection
with certain interest rate derivatives transactions entered into in 2005 and 2008. On 25 July
2014, NIP also received, also with no advance notice, a seizure order dated 23 July 2014
from the Court which has placed restrictions on a further €98.3 milion of cash and other
financial assets, said to be the alleged profit made by NIP in connection with certain
transactions entered between 2001 and 2008, Both orders are limited to Nomura’s ltalian
operations and therefore are not expected to have an impact on Nomura's operation or
activities outside of ltaly.

NIP is in the process of investigating the position. The current transaction with Sicily rermains
in force. No civil proceedings nave been served on NIP,
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33.

34.

35.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
Cther Litigation

The Group is also party to various other legal proceedings, the ultimate resolution of which is
not expected to have a material adverse impact on the financial position of the Group.

Commitments

The Company had commitments as at 31 March 2014 amounting to $2,993,949,000 (2013:
$3,169,244,000) in respect of undrawn note issuance facilities, loan commitments, outstanding
capital contributions on investments in partnership interests and performance guarantees.
This amount includes the related party loan commitments and performance guarantees
disclosed in note 25.

NB! has provided financial guarantees to third parties over their exposure to Nemura Group
companies amounting to $142,609,914 {2013: $179,597,842),

Nomura Bank {Luxembourg} S.A. has extended rental guarantees for its offices amounting to
$099,586 (2013: $928,943) and extended guarantees on behalf of its employees to third
parties in the amount of $231,628 (2013: $164,006).

The Company had ne commitments as at 31 March 2014 (2013: $3,000,000,000) in respect
of subordinated loan facilities granted to NIP.

As part of its normal business practices the Group also had commitments as at 31 March
2014 in respect of forward starting purchase and resale agreements with third parties.

EVENTS SINCE THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 19 June 2014 the Company repaid subordinated debt in the amounts of $1,625,000,000
ang $125,000,000 to NHI and NEF respectively.

ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CONTROLLING PARTY

The Group's ultimate parent undertaking and controling party, and the parent that heads the
smallest and largest group of undertakings for which group financial statements are prepared,
is Nomura Holdings, Inc., incorporated in Japan. Copies of the group financial statements of
Nomura Holdings, Inc. may be obtained from 9-1, Nihonbashi 1-chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 103-
8645, Japan.
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